
 
 

MEETING OF THE WOU BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MEETING NO. 44 – FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

10:00AM-3:00PM 
WERNER UNIVERSITY CENTER | COLUMBIA ROOM 

To observe the meeting: wou.edu/livestream 
Audio only, call: +1 346 248 7799 US | Meeting ID: 812 5521 7982 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. CALL-TO-MEETING / ROLL CALL 

 
II. CHAIR’S WELCOME 

 
1) Board Resolution 
 

III. CONSENT AGENDA (Appendix A) 
 
1) Meeting Minutes: 

 
a) November 17, 2021 
 
b) December 14, 2021 

 
2) FY22 Management Report (As of December 31, 2021) 

 
3) Academic Proposal: Graduate Certificate in Writing Theory & Practice for In-Service 

Teachers 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

V. STAKEHOLDER UPDATES 
 
1) SHARED GOVERNANCE 

 
a. ASWOU 
 
b. Faculty Senate (pg. 3) 

 
c. Staff Senate (pg. 7) 
 

 2)  UNION  
 

a. SEIU 
 
b. WOUFT 
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VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

1) ACADEMIC & STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE (ASAC) 
 

2) DIVERSITY, EQUITY, INCLUSION COMMITTEE (DEIC) 
 

3) EXECUTIVE GOVERNANCE & TRUSTEESHIP COMMITTEE (EGTC) 
 

4) FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE (FAC) 
 

VII. BREAK  
 

VIII. LUNCH/PRESENTATION: COMPREHENSIVE CAMPAIGN PRESENTATION (pg.10) 
Erin McDonough, Executive Director for Advancement & WOU Foundation | Travis  
Carley & Daniel Heiss, CCS Fundraising 
 

IX. BOARD CONVERSATION WITH DR. REGINALD RICHARDSON, President, Salem-
Keizer NACCP 
 

X. ACTION ITEMS 
 
1) FY2021 Financial Statements Audit (pg.33) 
 
2) Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee Charter (pg.110) 
 

XI. BREAK 
 

XII. PRESIDENT KENTON Update (pg.114) (Cabinet full reports in Appendix B) 
 

XIII. FINAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
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Faculty Senate Report to the Board of Trustees February 16, 2022 

 
1. Curriculum Changes 
Since the Board of Trustees meeting last fall, Faculty Senate has approved 31 modifications to 
undergraduate courses, eight to graduate courses, 11 modifications to undergraduate programs, 
and 11 to graduate programs. We have approved nine new undergraduate courses and 11 new 
graduate courses, and dropped one course at the undergraduate and one at the graduate level. 
One graduate focus area was dropped. Bulk changes were made to drop outdated Computer 
Science and Information Systems courses from the catalog. As a result of Article 15, the 
Geography major and courses  were also dropped from the catalog,  
Type/Level Modifications New Drop 

Course 
Undergraduate 31 9 1 
Graduate 8 11 1 

Program 
Undergraduate 11 0 0 
Graduate 11 0 1 

 
2. Committees 
We have faculty to serve on the newly established Academic Sustainability Committee. We are 
accepting nominations for the College Restructure Taskforce. Due to capacity issues, we are still 
trying to fill vacant seats on some committees. 
 
3. University 
The focus seems to have shifted to the barriers that students are facing as they navigate their way 
through their time at Western. In particular, the focus is on Black, Brown, Indigenous, and other 
Students of Color and the gaps in resources for them. As a response to the emails, letters, and 
incidents occurring in the WOU community, I have written a letter to the Faculty Senate. It is 
found here and may be accessed with your WOU email address. 
 
4. Faculty & Program Celebrations  

Who What/Description 
Breeann Flesch 
(Computer 
Science), Leanne 
Merrill 
(Mathematics), 
Kristin Latham-
Scott (Biology) 

FEM in STEM updates 
FEM in STEM is excited to share some updates. We have a CiP intern, Chloe 
Erdahl who is majoring in Information Systems, minoring in Health, and is 
amazing! Our mentoring program continues with 9 mentors and 7 mentees from 
across fields and marginalized genders in STEM. We have set programming to 
celebrate International Day of Women and Girls in Science on February 11th and 
continue our speaker series on Feb 24th, both events on the WOU campus and 
open to everyone. 

James Reddan, 
Music 

Celebrating 150 Years of Music at WOU 
The Music Department is celebrating 150 years of music at WOU during the 
2021-2022 academic year. This year's celebration includes our return to in-person 
concerts (following all protocols), coordination with the WOU Foundation and 
Alumni events, active work with the local schools, and the community. 
Additionally, students will be participating in numerous events representing WOU 
throughout the state, region, and nationally. 
Guest Artists and Invited Performances 
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The WOU Choirs have been fortunate to work with Francisco Nunez, director of 
the Young People's Chorus of New York City, on November 8th and bringing him 
to local schools to work with the community on November 9th. The WOU 
Chamber Singers will be working with composer Daniel Schreiner on his piece "I 
am Glad" which they will perform as part of their fall concert on November 30th. 
The WOU Chamber Singers and Western Oregon Voices were invited to film and 
participate in the virtual Holidays at the Capitol by the Capitol Events Office and 
to share their music with the state with their recordings playing in the Rotunda (the 
only University ensembles asked to do so). They are looking forward to 
performances at the Northwest American Choral Directors Association 
Conference in March and in Carnegie Hall in May of 2022! 
WOU Chamber Singers to Open 2022 Oregon State Legislature 
By request of Senator Peter Courtney, members of the WOU Chamber Singers 
performed at the Oregon State Senate opening of the 2022 legislative session on 
Tuesday, February 21st. 

Leanne Merrill, 
Mathematics 

Polk County Math Circle 
In January 2022, Dr. Leanne Merrill and a team of Math Majors launched the Polk 
County Math Circle. This program aims to increase mathematical creativity, 
persistence, and community in Polk County, Oregon, and is supported by a 
Dolciani Mathematics Enrichment Grant from the Mathematical Association of 
America. Four college student mentors designed creative extracurricular tasks for 
high school students, and are currently with the high school students on those tasks 
to help enhance their problem-solving and critical thinking skills. Plus, the high 
school students get a peek at how much fun it is to be a math major at Western 
Oregon University!  

Stewart Baker, 
Library 
Jen Bracy, 
Creative Arts 

Communities for Immunity Grant 
Communities for Immunity is an unprecedented partnership to boost COVID-19 
vaccine confidence in communities across the United States that leverages the 
unique position of museums and libraries to employ highly localized approaches 
to reach vulnerable audiences. Our own Hamersly Library, in partnership with 
other community libraries and WOU's Public Health program, applied for and 
were awarded a significant grant to address COVID-19 vaccine confidence 
amongst hesitant populations in our region. Jen Bracy's graphic design students 
are producing communications materials to support this work. Stewart Baker 
(Hamersly Library), Jen Bracy (Creative Arts), Emily Vala-Haynes, Megan 
Patton-Lopez, Jenny Leon-Perez, and Maddie Dirren (WOU Community Health + 
Polk County COVID-19 Project) are working together with four local public 
libraries on a federally-funded grant to increase vaccine confidence. They will be 
purchasing books for local libraries, providing unique graphic and informational 
materials for their patrons, and hosting a virtual, bilingual storytime. The grant is 
provided by the Association of Science and Technology Centers (ASTC) in 
conjunction with the Institute for Museum and Library Services (IMLS). 

Mark Henkels, 
Public Policy and 
Administration 

The Politics, Policy, and Administration program will have a program called Pre-
Law at Western Oregon, Winter 2022. There will be a number of activities: 
Wednesday, January 26, 4 pm:  Hamersley Library Room 108 
Workshop on the Law School Admission Council (LSAC) website.  
Friday, February 11 at 10 am, Willamette Room, Werner University Center 
Visit with Current Law School Students Paige Chrz (3L) and Owen Johnson (2L) 
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Wednesday, February 23 at 4 pm:  On zoom 
Visit with WOU Alumni who are now practicing attorneys. Grace Thompson is a 
recent graduate for Seattle University School of Law working with a large law 
firm in Seattle. Kyleigh Gray is a graduate from Willamette Law who is now 
clerking with the Oregon Supreme Court.  
Friday, March 4, 10am  
Willamette School of Law Campus tour 
Law school campus visit and lunch. 
Wednesday, March 9, 4 pm: Willamette Room, Werner University Center   
Talk with Immigration Attorney Eric Fischer. 

Darryl Thomas, 
Professor of Dance 
& Artistic 
Director, Rainbow 
Dance Theatre in 
collaboration with 
Dr. Breeann 
Flesch, Professor 
& Chair | 
Computer Science 
Division 
and Camila 
Gabaldón, 
Associate 
Professor | 
Librarian and 
Academic Web 
Applications 
Developer 

The iDance Mobile Code Lab travels to urban and rural communities to engage 
youth underrepresented in coding as adults.  In Drone Dance & Coding youth 
learn to code drones for an aerial ballet.  In Hip Hop Dance & Coding and African 
Drum & Coding, youth learn to code the LEDs on drums, electronic puppets and 
dance costumes to respond to movement and sound.  Art and science bridging the 
educational access gap in our community. 

 
Maren Bradley 
Anderson, English 
Studies 
Department 
and Managing 
Editor of PURE 
Insights  
 

Here's the link to PURE Insights #10, which came out at the end of 
December: https://digitalcommons.wou.edu/pure/  
PURE Insights is the publication of PURE, the Program for Undergraduate 
Research Experiences at WOU. PURE Insights strives to include the best 
undergraduate work produced across the colleges and disciplines of Western 
Oregon University, so PURE Insights accepts submissions of technical papers, 
research articles, expository articles, poems, short stories, photographs, videos, 
and other creative works from all academic disciplines. Submissions must be the 
original work of at least one undergraduate student with at least one WOU faculty 
mentor. 
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Patricia Giménez-
Eguíbar, Chair of 
Modern 
Languages 
Department  
 

Diccionario Historico de la Lengua Española 
Professor Patricia Giménez-Eguíbar was invited to participate in the prestigious 
project DHLE (Diccionario Historico de la Lengua Española) that is been 
undertaken by RAE. The Royal Spanish Academy (RAE) is the Spanish official 
institution responsible for overseeing the Spanish language since 1713. The RAE 
is affiliated with national language academies in twenty-two other Spanish-
speaking nations through the Association of Spanish Language Academies. The 
RAE and ASALE promote a pan-Hispanic linguistic unity and integrity within and 
among their respective territories to ensure a common language standard while 
acknowledging polycentric koinés. To achieve this goal, RAE regularly publishes 
dictionaries, grammars, orthographies and classical literary works.  
In the letter they ask for her participation given that she is “a prestigious specialist 
in her field of expertise.” 
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Staff Senate Report to the Board of Trustees 

February 16, 2022 

 

 

Dear Board of Trustees, 

 

As Staff Senate heads into Winter term, we are proud to have been able to roll out our 

monthly recognition program where we celebrate the accomplishments of an individual 

as well as a department each month.  In addition to the public recognition, individual 

winners receive a $20 gift card to either the Bookstore or Campus Dining (winner’s 

choice) and the departmental winner gets a snack bag for everyone in that area, as well 

as customized chalkboard sign to display however the department chooses.  For the 

first two months of the program, we have received over 50 nominations!  We hope to 

continue to refine this program throughout the year and look forward to recognizing 

many more of our fellow staff members and the departments that they serve.  

 

Now, with the recognition program moving forward, Staff Senate will be turning its 

attention to performance reviews and training.   

We believe that employee reviews are an important tool in evaluating performance and 

talking about career growth & goals.  We haven’t received specific numbers yet, but the 

consensus is that reviews are not happening reliably and there is little to no guidance as 

to best practices, or even as to when the reviews should occur.   

Since we don’t currently seem to have a formalized policy that is applied consistently 

across the board, we are looking to have an open discussion about what the future of 

employee reviews should look like (and how we can hold ourselves responsible for 

making sure reviews happen). 

Staff Senate also feels that the most important thing in improving (revising?) this 

process is to start with training for the supervisors.  Many current supervisors have 

never been given any training in how to conduct an effective review.  At the very least, 

providing basic information for anyone responsible for giving reviews would be a great 

place to start. 
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Staff Senate is also having conversations about new and additional ideas to 

recognize/compensate individuals for taking on additional work.  Committee service 

needs (including search committees) can take a considerable amount of staff time, and 

rarely (if ever?) is staff compensated for this service, nor their workload reduced.  This 

can make it especially challenging to find Classified staff to serve on committees as 

they don’t have the “opportunity” to work over a 40 hour week without penalty.  We 

would also like to explore options for compensation to staff members that take on 

substantial additional duties due to reduced staffing. 

 

Accomplishments: 

Internal Senate committees have been active in working on behalf of staff & students.   

The Staff Connections Committee has sent out our collaborative cookbooks and it 

appears that we will be printing a second order.  All proceeds go to scholarships for 

WOU students. 

The Administrative Equity Committee (Unclassified Staff Members) has been working 

with HR to update the Unclassified Employee Handbook, improve internal 

communication to all unclassified employees and to revise policies pertaining to 

unclassified sick leave.  

 

Continued Challenges: 

We continue to struggle to fill open positions that require service from WOU staff, 

although we have made some progress.  We continue to actively seek nominations for 

these positions that have been open since Summer: 

Staff Senator (Classified Position) 

University Technology Advisory Committee 

Werner University Center Advisory Board 
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Additionally, we are also currently seeking nominations of staff to serve in the following 

positions: 

WOU Board of Trustees 

Academic Sustainability Committee 

WOU Restructure Task Force (3 staff members) 

 

Staff Senate Goals for 2021-2022: 

Improving Campus Communication 

Increasing Morale & Participation 

Better Training & Performance Reviews 

 

 

Current Staff Senate Membership for 2021-2022 

Classified Senators: 

Amanda Bales, Jenna Otto (President), Keats Chaves, Melissa Hinzman, 

Michelle Gallagher (Secretary/Recorder), Unfilled Seat 

Unclassified Senators: 

Adrian Trujillo, Ambre Plahn, Luanne Carillo-Avalos, Kelly Rush, Michael Reis, 

Rip Horsey (Vice-President) 
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WOU Foundation 
Erin McDonough, Executive Director

Travis Carley, CCS Fundraising 
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Presentation Notes
Presented Jan. 2018 
July 2019 



Mission
Strengthen, serve and support 

Western Oregon University. 
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Current Board Officers
CHAIR | Mike Morgan ‘70, retired

VICE CHAIR | Kelly Atkinson ‘84, Senior Right-of-Way Acquisition Specialist, WSDOT
TREASURER | Mark Humphreys, SVP and Senior Credit Officer, US Bank

SECRETARY | Pat Stineff ’77 ’83, retired 
PAST CHAIR | Cori Frauendiener ’67, retired
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ED, Advancement and 
WOU Foundation  -

Erin McDonough

Gift Officer – HIRE 
Jan. 1, 2023

Gift Officer – Sabra 
Jewell

Annual Giving Officer 
– Morgan Harris

Director, Smith Fine 
Arts (.75) – Lisa 

Schachter

Alumni Engagement & 
Foundation Events 

Coordinator – Emily 
Lafon

Director, 
Advancement 

Operations & Finance 
– Cara Groshong

Database & Research 
Manager – Kristen 

Kreskey

Interim Advancement 
Finance Manager –

Noah Carrillo 

Executive Assistant –
Louise Sanderson

WOU Foundation Staff Team
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Comprehensive Campaign 
CCS Fundraising 
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ABOUT CCS FUNDRAISING

Partners with 
500+ nonprofits 

annually 
worldwide

Innovator in the 
field of 

fundraising for 
7 decades 

Largest 
professional 

staff with 400+ 
full-time 

employees

CCS is a fundraising 
consulting firm that partners 

with nonprofits for 
transformational change.

Our areas of expertise 
include strategic counsel, 
capital and endowment 
campaigns, leadership 
giving, development 

assessments, and data 
analytics.
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Select Partners in Higher Education
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Our Partnership

SUPPORTING 
STRATEGY

Materials, strategy, 
and prep for early 

meetings

TELLING THE 
STORY

Refining the case for 
support and donor 

prospectus

UNCOVERING 
POTENTIAL

Defining potential and 
analyzing database to 

prioritize prospects

CREATING THE 
PLAYBOOK

A plan to guide 
activity and create a 

foundation for success
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Charitable giving reached 
record levels in 2020.1

Corporate giving 
declined in 2020.1

The HNW population is 
increasing; so is their 

share of giving.3,4

The vast majority of 
charitable giving comes 

from individuals.1

8 of the 10 sectors 
tracked by Giving USA 
saw increased giving.1

Non-cash donations 
positively correlate 

with growth.5

Foundations are the 
fastest-growing 

source of giving.1

Giving to pandemic 
relief and racial equity 

efforts exploded.2

The growth of online 
giving accelerated 
rapidly in 2020.6

Philanthropic Landscape
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$0B

$50B

$100B

$150B

$200B

$250B

$300B

$350B

$400B

$450B

$500B

TOTAL GIVING, 1980-2020

Inflation-adjusted dollars 
in recession

Inflation-adjusted dollars, 
2020 = $100

Current 
dollars

$471.44 billion was 
donated to charity in 

the U.S. in 2020

→ $1.29 billion given on average per day
→ 5.1% increase over 2019 in current dollars
→ 3.8% increase in inflation-adjusted dollars

Giving Reached An All-time High 2020
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4%Corporations // $16.88B

Bequests // $41.91B

Foundations // $88.55B 19%

9%

69% Individuals // $324.10B

Fundamentally, about 88%
of giving comes from 

individuals

(If we consider bequests—
9%— and the approximately 
half of foundation giving that 

comes from family 
foundations—9.5%)

Where Did The Money Come From?
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Western Oregon University Giving USA Avg.

How Does WOU Compare?

Page 21 of 125



An intensive fundraising effort 
designed to raise a specific 
amount of money within a 

defined period of time to meet 
the varied needs of an 

organization.

What Is A Campaign?

Page 22 of 125



The Campaign For WOU
Securing a Brighter Future for Western Oregon University
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The Campaign For WOU

The Campaign For WOU will focus
on five key areas to secure a
brighter future for generations of
Wolves to come:

GROW STUDENT SCHOLARSHIPS: 
$12 Million
Expand scholarship endowments to provide more students with 
financial support and increase amount of support awarded per student.

ENHANCE FACILITIES AND FIELDS: $10 Million
Modernize and re-energize WOU’s campus with new student-centered 
facilities and updated athletics playing fields to upgrade pedagogy and 
competition.

ADVANCE INSTRUCTIONAL INNOVATION: $1 Million
Provide faculty and staff with the most up to date tools and training to facilitate 
the best possible learning outcomes for students.

REDUCE BARRIERS TO STUDENT SUCCESS: $1 Million
Alleviate student concerns and provide critical support to students that will 
allow them to focus on academic and professional success.

ENRICH THE STUDENT EXPERIENCE: $1 Million
Create a lasting connection between students and WOU with initiatives and 
programs that will provide the best possible collegiate experience.

$25 Million
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A Culture of Philanthropy
A subset of organizational culture, which itself is largely unconscious, taken 
for granted set of beliefs, values, and norms. These are unwritten values that 
govern our decision when no one is looking.

A culture of philanthropy is an understanding that philanthropy is essential to 
an organization’s mission and that everyone understands that they have a 
role in support of it and what that role is.  

“Culture eats strategy for breakfast”
- Peter Drucker
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17 © CCS Fundraising

The Role of Philanthropy

Access and 
Affordability

Excellence 
and 

Innovation

Experience 
and Success

Gratitude and 
Community

Legacy and 
Longevity
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Presentation Notes
Philanthropy has played an important role in the history of higher education since the seminal donation made by John Harvard in 1636, which created the now world-famous college of the same name. 
 
Access and Affordability 
Universities benefit from philanthropy not only to cover financial aid and operational costs, but also to subsidize tuition, increase access to college for traditionally underserved populations, fund research, and improve the overall quality of education. 
 
University foundations allow for more flexibility than the government allows with public funds, which is especially important for public universities. 
 
Experience and Success
Philanthropy has a significant role to play in helping these students overcome barriers and succeed in college and beyond. Effective scholarship and college success programs that address financial, academic, and social needs can help improve college completion rates and open up important post-college opportunities.
 
Tuition alone doesn’t support the full student experience. The college experience is more than just the classroom. Arts, athletics, the alumni community, professional programs, off-campus opportunities - philanthropy can help close that gap. 
 
Gratitude and Community
Supporting WOU through philanthropy helps give back to the next generation of students. 
 
The money that you donate goes to new scholarships and to help fund new programs for the next classes of students who will attend WOU. It is one of the ways that we can continue to participate in the life of the University and be a part of the tradition. 
 
Legacy and longevity
Supporting WOU puts you in the middle of a century and a half of legacy. Ensuring that WOU is serving students over the next decade and into the next century. 
 
Clark Kerr, the first chancellor of the University of California, Berkeley, once observed that of all the institutions that were established in the western world five centuries ago, only 85 persist today. This tiny group includes the Catholic church, the Parliaments of the Isle of Man, Iceland and Great Britain, several Swiss cantons and, most strikingly, 70 universities.
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$5.5 Million Raised 
Towards Goal

$25M Campaign Goal$4.433 Million Restricted 
to Campaign Priorities

Grow Student 
Scholarships

$3.933 Million Raised

Enhance Facilities and 
Fields

$4,393 Raised

Advance Instructional 
Innovation

$73,756 Raised

Reduce Barriers to 
Student Success
$252,184 Raised

Enrich the Student 
Experience

$180,436 Raised

Dollars Raised 
Towards Goal

22%
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The Campaign For WOU: Table Of Gifts
Level # Gifts # Prospects $ Gifts $ Asks

$3,000,000 1 1 $      3,000,000 $      3,000,000 
$1,000,000 1 3 $      1,000,000 $      3,000,000 
$500,000 7 23 $      3,500,000 $   11,500,000 
$250,000 30 89 $      7,500,000 $   22,250,000 
$100,000 60 174 $      6,000,000 $   17,400,000 
$50,000 100 290 $      5,000,000 $   14,500,000 
$25,000 120 360 $      3,000,000 $      9,000,000 
$10,000 173 521 $      1,730,000 $      5,210,000 
Below Many

492 1461 $   30,730,000 $   85,860,000 
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Remaining in 
portfolio

Unassigned $250k 
capacity

Unassigned $100k capacity

$50k and some 5-year giving history

$25k and some 5-year giving history

$25k and no 5-year giving history

Community

Board and $500k capacity w/ Relationship

Assigned Staff # of Prospects

President, EDF 26

President, EDF, 
Assigned Fundraiser

75

Assigned Fundraiser 68

ED, Foundation Staff 79

Staff 157

Staff 192

Staff 284

Staff 44

Staff 2753

WOU’s top prospects were determined 
utilizing different data sets including 
Blackbaud’s predictive modeling analysis, 
lifetime giving totals, 5-year giving history, 
and other factors. 

$500k+ capacity not assigned, $100K capacity assignedTop 
Prospects 
and Phasing
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Timeline and Phases
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Nucleus Phase
Board and $500K with existing relationship, $500K+ not assigned, $100K assigned, all remaining prospects in portfolios

Leadership Gifts Phase
Unassigned $250K, unassigned $100K, $50K with some 5-year giving history

Major Gifts Phase
$25K some 5-year giving history, $25K no 5-year giving history, low 
capacity + high MGL + no 5-year giving history

Community Phase
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Key Task Executive Leaders Board Members Development Office

Identifying 
Prospects

o Provide names
o Leverage contacts
o Vet names & engage in developing strategy

o Provide names
o Leverage contacts
o Vet names & engage in developing strategy

o Research and circulate
o Share new donors
o Track & manage information
o Lead strategy sessions

Cultivating 
Prospects

o Attend cultivation events
o Focus time on top prospects
o Receive & review briefings
o Follow-up, as coordinated by Development Team 

o Host an event
o Set up a meeting, coffee
o Receive & review briefings
o Follow-up, as coordinated by  Development 

Team  

o Prepare & provide briefings
o Plan/attend events
o Provide background materials to executives & board 

members 
o Coordinate follow-up

Soliciting Donors

o Solicit top prospects
o Follow up, as coordinated by Development Team  

o Accompany & share your story
o “Join me”
o Follow up, as coordinated  Development 

Team 

o Prepare materials
o Provide assignments
o Coordinate solicitation meetings & follow-up
o Brief board members  & executives
o Train & practice with solicitors
o Participate in solicitations 

Stewarding 
Donors

o Stay engaged with top donors
o Personally thank top donors
o Stewardship events

o Stay engaged with new donors
o Send personal thank yous
o Thank you calls

o Send mailings & updates
o Think about the next ask

Overall Strategy

o Develop fundraising strategy with board &  
Development Team 

o Advocate for the importance of fundraising
o Create a culture of philanthropy
o Develop a board that supports fundraising

o Develop fundraising strategy with executives 
&  Development Team 

o Develop fundraising strategy with executives & board 
members 

o Advocate for the importance of fundraising
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Actions You Can Take 
Be a donor. 

Be an advocate. 
Keep an eye out. 
Say thank you. 

Lead the culture. 

THANK YOU! 
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Presentation Notes
Be a donor. Thank you to those that already invest. 
Be an advocate. Tell your friends about WOU. 
Keep an eye out. Do you know someone/company that would likely invest in the WOU mission, provide an introduction. Meet an alum, ask them if they are receiving e-news or attending events. 
Say thank you. If you meet a WOU donor, thank them for making a difference. 




Finance & Administration Committee (FAC), FY2021 Financial Statements Audit 

Western Oregon University’s Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 was prepared by the University’s staff. 

The public accounting firm, Eide Bailly LLP (“Auditor”), has audited the financial report 
and has issued an unmodified opinion, i.e., in their opinion the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the University.  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

The WOU Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Western 
Oregon University Board of Trustees accept the University’s fiscal year 2021 audit of 
financial statements.  
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2021 ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL REPORT

Together we SUCCEED
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Fiscal year 2020-21 was a difficult year for the university, 
our employees and students. The pandemic continued 
throughout the year and although many staff and 
administrators continued to come to campus every day, most 
of our faculty and employees worked remotely from home or 
other locations. Being an institution that serves many first 
generation and non-traditional students, many did not fare 
well in an on-line learning environment and most missed 
the high touch, high service associated with both in-person 
instruction and services.

WOU’s enrollment has continued to decline throughout 
the pandemic, and we have now experienced ten straight 
years of enrollment declines. This has obviously impacted 
our tuition and fee revenues and has had a significant impact 
on auxiliary income from housing, food services, athletic 

events (which were mostly cancelled), and other revenues causing us to use reserves and otherwise 
reduce expenditures, including cutting academic programs and laying off both faculty and staff to 
maintain a balanced budget. 

Thankfully, we had Federal funds associated with the American Recovery Plan Act (ARPA) and 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF); these funds have proven crucial to the uni-
versity and its students in weathering the pandemic. These funds were used to purchase masks, lab 
and studio supplies for at home kits, air filtration equipment, video and conference call enabled 
classroom upgrades, amplifiers for faculty using masks and other related safety equipment. Over the 
2020-21 academic year, we disbursed $2.9 million to students and used about $3.6 million to reim-
burse salaries and other costs associated with the pandemic. These federal funds have been absolute-
ly instrumental in maintaining the fiscal integrity of the institution as well as preserving many jobs 
for our employees.

Additionally, the 2021-23 Oregon biennial State budget is one of the best in our history. The Leg-
islature appropriated $900M to support the seven Oregon public university campuses. In addition, 
we received added funding for a Strong Start precollege program for freshmen with special emphasis 
on math and writing. We also received added funding for bilingual teachers, sports lottery funding 
for athletics and student aid and received capital funding for a new $21.3M Student Success Center 
which is needed on campus. Thus, although enrollment continues to be down from past years, we 
are able to sustain operations and invest in multiple initiatives aimed at growing our enrollment for 
the future.

This Federal and State funding has also allowed WOU to keep tuition affordable for our students. 
Tuition was increased by 2% over the prior year and fee remissions are budgeted at 16% of gross tui-
tion, thus we have been able to preserve affordability for our most vulnerable student populations.

The WOU Salem campus opened in September 2021 and is now being used to teach classes to 
graduate and returning undergraduate students—markets that were challenging in the past without 
this kind of facility in the heart of a thriving city. It is mostly programmed in the evening to be a 
convenient alternative for working adult students. However, it has also opened the doors to some 

MESSAGE FROM THE INTERIM PRESIDENT
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innovative partnerships with the State for workforce development training and other professional 
development opportunities. 

We continue to emphasize becoming a Hispanic Serving Institution and are reaching out to the 
Latino communities with increased advertising, meeting with leadership groups and working to add 
Spanish speakers to departments that directly serve either students or employees whose native lan-
guage is Spanish. In addition, we have added a bilingual admissions director and have gone to great 
lengths to retain our Spanish speaking financial aid counselors as this is a critical requisite to our 
success in serving more Hispanic students and their families. 

We have launched multiple initiatives to reverse our enrollment decline and rebuild our finances. 
These initiatives include the following: investing in new faculty in high demand programs; hiring 
a partnership specialist to market our programs to broader audiences; investments in marketing in 
multiple venues; adding a men’s soccer program; hiring the Education Advisory Board (EAB) on a 
multi-year contract to help us recruit non-traditional and graduate students; launching new graduate 
programs; offering additional professional development and training programs possibly with mi-
cro-credentials and badges; and strengthening our articulation and partnerships with nearby com-
munity colleges.

We have also had great success in obtaining added research and sponsored project funding 
recently. Our total funding for the coming year is up 50% over the prior year and our indirect cost 
recoveries have doubled. In addition, we are making investments in continuing this growth by using 
indirect cost recoveries to cover a contract with a firm to assist us in developing a grant seeking cul-
ture on campus and to assist us in developing large institutional grants.

The WOU Foundation has engaged CCS Fundraising and is launching a $25 million compre-
hensive campaign for the university with the majority of the funds earmarked to scholarships, fields 
and facilities among other things. Significant donations have already been received as we ramp up 
this campaign with a goal to complete in 2026 which will mark the 170th anniversary of the campus 
which was founded in 1856.

I am happy to report that the university has recently renewed its commitment to diversity, equity 
and inclusion. Our students opened a new Freedom Center in our student center, we are recruiting 
our first executive director of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion and all students and employees are 
attending compulsory diversity training in order to create a more respectful and welcoming environ-
ment for all.

This year, we are recruiting a new president for the university. President Fuller retired on June 30, 
2021 and I accepted the interim role until a new president can be found. This is yet another major op-
portunity for Western Oregon University. Our board has hired Anthem Executive to lead the search 
and board member Gayle Evans who is the chief human resources officer for Unitas Credit Union 
will chair the 21-member search committee. Our goal is to have candidates on campus in the late 
winter/early spring with a selection shortly thereafter. I will stay until that person is chosen and ready 
to on-board.

In sum, despite the challenges resulting from the shrinking high school graduating classes and 
the pandemic the university is continuing to adapt and change to remain sustainable now and into 
the future.

Jay Kenton, Interim President
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Western Oregon University 
Monmouth, Oregon 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Oregon University (the University), 
a component unit of the State of Oregon, and the discretely presented component unit of as of and for 
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.     

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not 
audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit, Western Oregon University 
Development Foundation (the Foundation). Those statements were audited by other auditors whose 
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the 
Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our audits in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial 
statements for the Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
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the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the University and the 
discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Relationship with the State of Oregon 
As described in Note 1, the financial statements of the University are intended to present the financial 
position, changes in financial position, and cash flows attributable to the University.  They do not 
purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the State of Oregon as of June 30, 2021 and 
2020, and the changes in its financial position for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles general accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, schedule of university contributions, schedule of university’s proportionate 
share of net pension asset/(liability), schedule of university PERS RHIA OPEB employer contribution, 
schedule of university’s proportionate share of the net PERS RHIA OPEB asset/(liability), schedule of 
university PERS RHIPA OPEB employer contribution, schedule of university’s proportionate share of the 
net PERS RHIPA OPEB asset/(liability), and the schedule of university’s proportionate share of the total 
PEBB OPEB liability as noted in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the University’s financial statements. The WOU Board of Trustees, President’s 
Cabinet, the Message from the President, and the Financial Ratios are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.   This information has not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 15, 
2021, on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the University’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Boise, Idaho 
December 15, 2021 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Introduction
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the financial position and 
activities of Western Oregon University (WOU, the university) for the year ended June 30, 2021, with comparative data 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2019. This discussion has been prepared by management to assist 
readers in understanding the accompanying financial statements and footnotes. 

Annual Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Student Enrollment Summary:
 2021 2020  2019  2018  2017 
 3,829 4,134  4,368  4,451  4,571 

Understanding the Financial Statements
The MD&A focuses on WOU as a whole and is intended to foster a greater understanding of WOU’s financial activities. 
Since this presentation includes summarized formats, it should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 
which have the following components. 
Statement of Net Position (SNP) presents a snapshot of WOU assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows 
under the accrual basis of accounting as of June 30, for each fiscal year presented. The SNP helps the reader understand 
the types and amounts of assets available to support operations, how much WOU owes to vendors and the State of Ore-
gon; and net position delineated based upon their availability for future expenditures.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (SRE) presents WOU revenues and expenses 
categorized between operating, nonoperating and other related activities. The SRE reports the WOU operating results 
for each fiscal year presented.
Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) provides information about WOU’s sources (receipts) and uses (payments) of cash 
during the fiscal year. The SCF classifies sources and uses of cash into four categories, and assists in determining 
whether WOU has the ability to generate future net cash flows to meet its obligations as they come due.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) provide additional information to clarify and expand on the financial state-
ments.
The MD&A provides an objective analysis of WOU’s financial activities based on currently known facts, decisions, and 
conditions. The MD&A discusses the current and prior year results in comparison to the current and two previous fiscal 
years. Unless otherwise stated, all years refer to the fiscal year ended June 30. 

Financial Summary
The university’s financial position increased during fiscal year 2021 with an increase in total net position as of June 
30, 2021, of $5,162 thousand. During 2021, unrestricted net position decreased by $6,863 thousand due to a continued 
enrollment decline. Net investment in capital assets increased by $7,011 thousand. Restricted expendable net position 
increased by $5,014 thousand. 
The university’s financial position decreased during fiscal year 2020 with a decrease in total net position as of June 
30, 2020, of $5,722 thousand. During 2020, unrestricted net position decreased by $15,010 thousand. A decrease in 
unrestricted net position resulted from a continued enrollment decline as well as a significant increase in net investment 
in capital assets of $11,632 thousand. Restricted expendable net position decreased by $2,344 thousand. 

Statement of Net Position
The term “Net Position” refers to the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources, and is an indicator of WOU’s current financial condition. Changes in net position 
that occur over time indicate improvement or deterioration in WOU’s financial condition.

Page 42 of 125



8   •   Western Oregon University

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

The following summarizes WOU assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position:

Condensed Statement of Net Position (in 000's)

Total Net Position
Total net position increased by $5,162 thousand, or 6 percent, during 2021. Decreases in unrestricted net position were 
offset by increases in net investment in capital assets and restricted - expendable.
Total net position decreased by $5,722 thousand, or 6 percent, during 2020. Decreases in unrestricted net position and 
restricted position were partially offset by an increase in net investment in capital assets.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020
Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $7,011 thousand, or 9 percent. 

•  Capital asset increases of $11,648 thousand were offset by a $6,170 thousand increase to accumulated depreciation for 
a net increase in capital assets of $5,478 thousand.

• Long-term debt outstanding attributable to the capital assets decreased by $1,285 thousand due primarily to debt 
service payments made on outstanding debt. See Note 8 Long-Term Liabilities for additional information.

See also Capital Assets later in this MD&A and Note 5 Capital Assets for additional details.

Restricted Expendable Net Position increased by $5,014 thousand, or 63 percent. 
•  Net position related to gifts, grants and contracts increased by $898 thousand.
•  Net position related to student loans decreased by $482 thousand.
•  Net position relating to the funding of capital projects decreased by $459 thousand primarily as the result of progress 

and completion of multiple capital projects.
•  Net position relating to funds reserved for debt service decreased by $64 thousand.
•  Net position restricted expendable for the OPEB asset increased by $5,121 thousand. 

Unrestricted Net Position decreased by $6,863 thousand, or 193 percent. 
•  Unrestricted operations, which includes education, auxiliaries, and general business type activities, decreased 

unrestricted net position by $1,235 thousand. 
•  Changes associated with year-end accruals for the PERS net pension liability decreased unrestricted net position by 

$12,188 thousand. 

As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019

Current Assets 35,147$         39,066$           40,492$           
Noncurrent Assets 22,479 15,383 28,344
Capital Assets , Net 132,915 127,437 118,121

Total Assets 190,541 181,886 186,957

Deferred Outflows of Resources 18,552 13,224 13,055

Current Liabilities 18,990 20,743 20,746
Noncurrent Liabilities 100,122 89,491 88,816

Total Liabilities 119,112 110,234 109,562
Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,137 2,193 2,045

Net Investment in Capital Assets 85,254 78,243 66,611
Restricted - Expendable 13,019 8,005 10,349
Unrestricted (10,428) (3,565) 11,445

Total Net Position 87,845$         82,683$           88,405$           
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•  Changes associated with year-end accruals for the OPEB asset and liabilities increased unrestricted net position by 
$4,040 thousand.

•  Changes associated with year-end liability accruals for PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP), 
compensated absences, and faculty credit banking increased unrestricted net position by $50 thousand.

See Note 9 Unrestricted Net Position for additional information. 

Comparison of fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2019
Net Investment in Capital Assets increased by $11,632 thousand, or 17 percent. 

•  Capital asset increases of $15,231 thousand were offset by a $5,915 thousand increase to accumulated depreciation for 
a net increase in capital assets of $9,316 thousand.

•  Long-term debt outstanding attributable to the capital assets decreased by $2,316 thousand due primarily to debt 
service payments made on outstanding debt. See Note 8 Long-Term Liabilities for additional information.

See also Changes to Capital Assets later in this MD&A and Note 5 Capital Assets for additional details.

Restricted Expendable Net Position decreased by $2,344 thousand, or 23 percent. 
•  Net position related to gifts, grants and contracts decrease by $378 thousand due primarily to a decrease in State of 

Oregon restricted funds at year end. 
•  Net position related to student loans decreased by $1,052 thousand.
•  Net position relating to the funding of capital projects decreased by $1,218 thousand primarily as the result of progress 

and completion of multiple capital projects.
•  Net position relating to funds reserved for debt service increased by $68 thousand primarily as the result of an increase 

in cash held restricted for debt service at year end. 
•  Net position restricted expendable for the OPEB asset increased by $236 thousand. The restricted expendable OPEB 

asset is equal to the Net OPEB Asset reported in noncurrent assets.

Unrestricted Net Position decreased by $15,010 thousand, or 131 percent. 
• Unrestricted operations, which includes education, auxiliaries, and general business type activities, decreased 

unrestricted net position by $2,160 thousand. 
• The WOU Board of Trustees created a new unrestricted quasi-endowment for the purpose of providing student 

financial aid. The corpus of the endowment is $1,000 thousand and current earnings total $21 thousand. 
• Changes associated with year-end accruals for the PERS net pension liability were $17 thousand less than last year, 

thus causing an increase unrestricted net position. 
• Changes associated with year-end accruals for the OPEB asset and liabilities increased unrestricted net position by 

$100 thousand.
• Changes associated with year-end liability accruals for PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP), 

compensated absences, and faculty credit banking increased unrestricted net position by $296 thousand.
See Note 9 Unrestricted Net Position for additional information.
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TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total Assets increased by $8,655 thousand, or 5 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2021. Total Assets decreased by 
$5,071 thousand, or 3 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020
Current Assets decreased by $3,919 thousand, or 10 percent, primarily due to: 

• Current cash and cash equivalents decreased by $7,768 thousand. Cash held for operations decreased by $10,199 thou-
sand. This decrease was partially offset by increases in debt service cash reserve and quasi-endowment.

• Accounts receivable increased by $4,001 thousand. Increases in receivables were observed in federal grants and 
contracts and were offset by a decrease in state capital construction grants and contracts. See Note 3 Accounts Receivable 
for additional information. 

• Current notes receivable decreased by $151 thousand due to a decrease in receivables for institutional and federal 
student loans. See Note 4 Notes Receivable for additional information. 

Noncurrent Assets increased by $7,096 thousand, or 46 percent, primarily due to: 
• Investments increased by $4,010 thousand. See Note 2 Cash and Investments for additional information.
• Net OPEB asset increased by $3,599 thousand. See Note 14 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for additional details. 

Capital Assets, Net increased by $5,478 thousand, or 4 percent. Capitalized acquisitions net of disposals and 
adjustments added $11,648 thousand, which was offset by an increase of $6,170 thousand in accumulated depreciation. 
See Capital Assets in this MD&A and Note 5 Capital Assets for additional information.
Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $5,328 thousand, or 40 percent.

• Deferred outflows related to changes in accruals for the net pension liability increased by $3,319 thousand. 
• Deferred outflows related to the OPEB net asset and liabilities increased by $2,009 thousand. See Note 6 Deferred 

Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources for detailed information on this change.

Comparison of fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2019
Current Assets increased by $1,426 thousand, or 4 percent, primarily due to: 

• Current cash and cash equivalents increased by $1,914 thousand. Cash held for operations decreased by $8,648 thou-
sand. Cash held in restricted gift, grant and contract funds increased by $1,385 thousand. Cash held for other restricted 
purposes decreased by $3,760 thousand. These increases were a result of converting investments to cash. 

• Accounts receivable decreased by $2,530 thousand. Decreases in receivables were mostly observed in student tuition 
and fees as a result of writing-off aging balances. See Note 3 Accounts Receivable for additional information. 

• Current notes receivable decreased by $204 thousand due to a decrease in receivables for institutional student loans 
and a decrease in the allowance for doubtful accounts. See Note 4 Notes Receivable for additional information.

Noncurrent Assets decreased by $12,961 thousand, or 46 percent, primarily due to: 
• Investments decreased by $12,792 thousand due to a conversion to cash. 
• Net OPEB asset increased by $236 thousand. See Note 14 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for additional de-

tails. See Note 14 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for additional details. 
Capital Assets, Net increasedby $9,316 thousand, or 8 percent. Capitalized acquisitions net of disposals and adjust-
ments added $15,230 thousand, which was offset by an increase of $5,915 thousand in accumulated depreciation. See 
Capital Assets later in this MD&A and Note 5 Capital Assets for additional information.
Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $169 thousand, or 1 percent.

• Deferred outflows related to changes in accruals for the net pension liability increased by $152 thousand. 
• Deferred outflows related to the OPEB net asset and liabilities increased by $17. See Note 6 for detailed information on 

this change.
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TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total liabilities increased by $8,878 thousand, or 8 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2021. Total liabilities in-
creased by $672 thousand, or 1 percent, during the year ended June 30, 2020

. 
Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020
Current Liabilities decreased bby $1,753 thousand, or 8 percent, due primarily to :

• The• Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased by $807 thousand due primarily to no longer deferring pay-
ment of employer-owed payroll taxes, as was done in 2020 provided by the CARES Act. See Note 7 Accounts Payable and 
Accrued Liabilities for additional information. 

• The current portion of long-term liabilities decreased by $294 thousand. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A 
and Note 8 Long-Term Liabilities. 

• Unearned revenue decreased by $411 thousand due primarily to a decrease in prepaid tuition and fees.
Noncurrent Liabilities increased by $675 thousand, or 1 percent. 

• Noncurrent long-term liabilities decreased by $1,379 thousand due primarily to debt service payments made during the 
year. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A and Note 8. 

• Net pension liability increased by $12,188 thousand. See Note 13 Employee Retirement Plans. 
• OPEB liabilities decreased by $178. See Note 14 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for additional details

Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased by $56 thousand, or 3 percent.
• Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability decreased by $652 thousand. 
• Deferred inflows related to the OPEB net asset and liabilities increased by $596 thousand. 

See Note 6 Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources for additional information. 

Comparison of fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2019
Current Liabilities decreased by $3 thousand, or 0 percent, due primarily to:

• The current portion of long-term liabilities increased by $63 thousand primarily due to previously issued debt coming 
due in the next year. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A and Note 8 Long-Term Liabilities. 

• Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $867 thousand due primarily to deferred payment of employ-
er-owed payroll taxes, as provided by the CARES Act of 2020. See Note 7 Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities for 
additional information. 

• Unearned revenue decreased by $45 thousand due primarily to a decrease in prepaid tuition and fees, which was mostly 
offset by increased grant and contract unearned revenue at year-end. 

Noncurrent Liabilities increased by $675 thousand, or 1 percent. 
• Noncurrent long-term liabilities decreased by $2,502 thousand due primarily to debt service payments made during the 

year. See Debt Administration later in this MD&A and Note 8. 
• Net pension liability increased by $3,375 thousand. See Note 13 Employee Retirement Plans. 
• OPEB liabilities decreased by $198 thousand. See Note 14 for additional details.

Deferred Inflows of Resources increased by $148 thousand, or 7 percent.
• Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability decreased by $127 thousand. 
• Deferred inflows related to the OPEB net asset and liabilities increased by $275 thousand

See Note 6 Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources for additional information.

Page 46 of 125



12   •   Western Oregon University

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (SRE)
Due to the classification of certain revenues as nonoperating revenue, WOU shows a loss from operations. State general 
fund appropriations, nonexchange grants and non-capital gifts, although considered nonoperating revenue under GASB 
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and 
Universities—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, and reflected accordingly in the nonoperating section of the 
SRE, are used solely for operating purposes.
The chart below summarizes the revenue and expense activity of WOU.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (in 000's)

 

Net position increased by $5,162 thousand, or 6 percent, in 2021 compared to a decrease of $5,722 thousand, or 6 
percent, in 2020. During 2021, a decrease in operating revenue was offset by a more significant decrease in operating 
expenses. During 2020, a decrease in operating revenue was further aggravated by an increase in operating expenses.

Total Revenues
Total revenues decreased by $811 thousand, or 1 percent, in 2021 from 2020, compared to a decrease of $5,194, 
or 4 percent, in 2020 from 2019. Decreases in total operating revenues were partially offset by increases in state 
appropriations, and an award under the Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF). 

Total Operating, Nonoperating, and Other Revenues (in 000's)

Total Operating and No noperating Revenues

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019

Operating Revenues 46,810$           51,243$             64,507$             
Operating Expenses 102,867 113,982 107,904

Operating Loss (56,057) (62,739) (43,397)
Nonoperating Revenues,

Net of Expenses 52,590 46,480 41,162
Other Revenues 8,629 10,537 7,888

5,162 (5,722) 5,653

Net Position, Beginning of Year 82,683 88,405 82,752
Net Position, End of Year 87,845$           82,683$             88,405$             

Increase in Net Position

Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019

Student Tuition and Fees 29,037$            25,578$              32,253$              
Grants  and Contracts 7,530 7,250 8,034
Auxiliary Enterprises 7,082 15,481 20,025
Educational and Other 3,161 2,934 4,195

Total Operating Revenues 46,810 51,243 64,507   
Appropriations 30,363 28,584 25,929
Federal and State Grants 21,318 17,116 14,284
Gifts 1,843 1,482 1,050
Investment Activity 805 1,831 2,487
Capital Grants  and Gifts 8,247 10,155 7,506
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets , Net 2 80 (41)
Other nonoperating items 329 37 -                     

Total Nonoperating Revenues 62,907 59,285 51,215

   Total Revenues 109,717$         110,528$            115,722$            
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Operating Revenues
Total operating revenues decreased by $4,433 thousand in 2021, or 9 percent, from 2020, to $46,810 thousand. Increases 
in student tuition and fees, grants and contract, and educational and other revenues were offset by a significant decrease 
in auxiliary enterprises. Total operating revenues decreased by $13,264 thousand in 2020, or 21 percent, from 2019, to 
$51,243 thousand. All categories of operating revenue decreased during 2020. 
Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020
Net Student Tuition and Fees increased by $3,459 thousand, or 14 percent.

• Tuition and fees increased by $3,002 thousand despite a continued decline in enrollment due primarily to an increase 
in online course fees resulting from nearly all courses being offered online due to the pandemic. 

• Fee remissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuition and fees by $345 thousand less than in the prior year. 
• Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of the allowance for bad debt, decreased by $112 thousand 

resulting in an increase in net tuition and fees. 
Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts increased by $280 thousand, or 4 percent. 

• Federal grant and contract revenues decreased by $171 thousand.
• State grant and contract activity increased by $702 thousand primarily due to increased grants from the State of Oregon’s 

Department of Education, Department of Human Services, Department of Transportation and the Higher Education 
Coordinating Commission. 

• Nongovernmental grant and contract activity decreased by $251 thousand primarily due to decreased grants and 
contracts from commercial businesses, foundations and associations. 

Auxiliary Enterprises revenues decreased by $8,399 thousand, or 54 percent. 
• Student health services revenues decreased by $1,545 thousand due primarily to nearly all courses being offered online 

due to the pandemic, resulting in minimal on-campus fees being assessed.
• Housing and dining revenues decreased by $2,098 thousand due primarily to decreased room and board and conference 

housing revenue as a result of fewer students being on campus due to the pandemic. 
• Athletics revenues decreased by $228 thousand. Decreased revenues from ticket sales and miscellaneous other sources 

were attributed to event cancellations due to the novel coronavirus. 
• Parking revenues decreased by $253 thousand primarily due to decreased parking fines and student and employee 

parking permit revenues. 
• Bookstore revenues decreased by $462 thousand due primarily to decreased revenues from textbooks sales and sales 

commissions. 
• Student centers and activities revenues decreased by $127 thousand primarily due to decreased revenue from rentals 

and ticket sales. 
• Other auxiliary revenues decreased by $3,686 thousand primarily due to decreased recreation center student fees, 

and incidental fees as a result of nearly all courses being offered online due to the pandemic, resulting in minimal on-
campus fees being assessed.

Educational Department Sales and Services and Other Operating revenues increased by $227 thousand, or 8 percent. 

Comparison of fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2019
Net Student Tuition and Fees decreased by $6,675 thousand, or 21 percent.

• Tuition and fees decreased by $3,456 thousand due primarily to a decrease in enrollment. 
• Fee remissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuition and fees by $1,944 thousand more than in the prior period. 
• Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of the allowance for bad debt, increased by $1,275 thousand 

resulting in a decrease in net tuition and fees.
Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts decreased by $784 thousand, or 10 percent. 

• Federal grant and contract revenues decreased by $291 thousand primarily due to decreased U.S. Department of 
Education grants and decreased U.S. Department of Justice cooperative agreements. 
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• State grant and contract activity decreased by $385 thousand primarily due to decreased grants from the State of 
Oregon’s Department of Education, Department of Human Services, Department of Transportation and the Higher 
Education Coordinating Commission. 

• Nongovernmental grant and contract activity decreased by $108 thousand primarily due to decreased grants and 
contracts from commercial businesses, foundations and associations. 

Auxiliary Enterprises revenues decreased by by $4,544 thousand, or 23 percent. 
• Student health services revenues decreased by $225 thousand due primarily to decreased student health fee revenue 

and decreased office visit income. 
• Housing and dining revenues decreased by $2,994 thousand due primarily to decreased room and board revenue, con-

ference housing revenue and an increase in the bad debt allowance. 
• Athletics revenues decreased by $237 thousand. Decreased revenues from ticket sales and miscellaneous other sources 

were attributed to event cancellations due to the novel coronavirus. 
• Parking revenues increased by $1 thousand primarily due to increased parking fines and student and employee parking 

permit revenues. 
• Bookstore revenues decreased by $456 thousand due primarily to decreased revenues from textbooks sales and sales 

commissions. 
• Student centers and activities revenues decreased by $64 thousand primarily due to decreased revenue from rentals 

and ticket sales. 
• Other auxiliary revenues decreased by $569 thousand primarily due to decreased recreation center student fees, inci-

dental fees, and service revenue.
Educational Department Sales and Services and Other Operating revenues decreased by $1,261 thousand, or 30 per-
cent. 

• Educational department sales and services decreased by $123 thousand primarily due to increased event income and 
miscellaneous sales and services. 

• Other operating revenue decreased by $1,138 thousand. Increased interest income was somewhat reduced by decreases 
in collection charges on student accounts, reimbursements from outside entities and other miscellaneous revenue. 

Nonoperating and Other Revenues
Nonoperating revenues increased by $3,622 thousand, or 6 percent, during 2021 resulting mainly from increased appro-
priations and federal and state grants items. Nonoperating revenues increased by $8,070 thousand, or 16 percent, during 
2020 resulting mainly from increased capital grants and gifts and appropriations.

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020
Government Appropriations increased by $1,779 thousand, or 6 percent. 

• State appropriations in support of university operations increased by $1,474 thousand. 
• State appropriations from lottery funds increased by $305 thousand. 

See Note 12 Government Appropriations for additional information relating to changes in appropriations. 
Federal and State Grants increased by $4,202 thousand, or 25 percent, primarily as a result of receiving continuing 
HEERF. 
Gifts increased by $361 thousand, or 24 percent, due primarily to an increase in gifts from the WOU Development 
Foundation.
Investment Activity revenues decreased by $1,026 thousand, or 56 percent, primarily due to a decrease in investment 
earning. A loss on sale of investments was partially offset by increased investment earning. See Note 10 Investment Activ-
ity for additional information. 
Capital Grants and Gifts decreased by $1,908 thousand, or 19 percent, due primarily to a decrease related to revenue 
from state reimbursable capital construction grants. 
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Gain on Sale of Assets, Net decreased by $78 thousand, or 98 percent, to $2 thousand during fiscal year 2021. 
Other Nonoperating Items increased by $292 thousand.

Comparison of fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2019
Government Appropriations increased by $2,655 thousand, or 10 percent. 

• State appropriations in support of university operations increased by $2,168 thousand. 
• State appropriations from lottery funds increased by $487 thousand. 

See Note 12 Government Appropriations for additional information relating to changes in appropriations. 
Financial and State Grants increased by $2,832 thousand, or 20 percent. An increase in financial aid assistance was at-
tributed to emergency awards to students and to the institutional support from section 18004(a) of the CARES Act (Pub. 
L. No. 116-136 (2020)) and partially offset by decreases in state and federal awards. 
Gifts increased by $432 thousand, or 41 percent, due primarily to an increase in gifts from the WOU Development 
Foundation.
Investment Activity rrevenues decreased by $656 thousand, or 26 percent. A loss on sale of investments was partially 
offset by increased investment earning. See Note 10 Investment Activity for additional information. 
Capital Grants and Gifts increased by $2,649 thousand, or 35 percent, due primarily to an increase related to revenue 
from state reimbursable capital construction grants. 
Gain on Sale of Assets, Net increased by $121 thousand, or 295 percent, to $80 thousand during fiscal year 2020. 
Other Nonoperating Items increased by $74 thousand, or 200 percent, to $37 thousand during fiscal year 2020. 

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses decreased by $11,115 thousand in 2021, or 10 percent, compared to 2020, to $102,867 thousand. De-
creases in expenses related to compensation and benefits, services and supplies, and other expenses were only partially 
offset by increases in scholarships and fellowships and depreciation and amortization. Operating expenses increased by 
$6,078 thousand in 2020, or 6 percent, compared to 2019, to $113,982 thousand. Increases in expenses related to com-
pensation and benefits, scholarships and fellowships and depreciation were only partially offset by a decrease in services 
and supplies. 

The following summarizes operating expenses by functional classification:

Operating Expenses by Function (in 000's)
 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019

Instruction 35,628$              41,185$            39,915$            
Research 1,028 624 810
Public Service 3,419 1,217 360
Academic Support 8,861 10,258 10,245
Student Services 7,917 8,340 7,410
Auxiliary Programs 17,487 23,199 23,527
Institutional Support 8,327 7,973 7,377
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 4,426 5,446 5,371
Student Aid 9,979 8,997 6,007
Other Operating Expenses 5,795 6,743 6,882

Total Operating Expenses 102,867$            113,982$          107,904$          
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Effect of GASB Nos. 68 and 71 on Expense by Function (in 000's)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 As Reported

Without 
GASB 68/71 

& 75 Difference

Instruction 35,628$          34,336$          1,292$            
Research 1,028 992 36
Public Service 3,419 3,296 123
Academic Support 8,861 8,566 295
Student Services 7,917 7,642 275
Auxiliary Programs 17,487 17,255 232
Institutional Support 8,327 8,164 163
Operations & Maint. of Plant 4,426 3,850 576
Student Aid 9,979 9,979 -                  
Other Operating Expenses 5,795 5,753 42

Total Operating Expenses 102,867$      99,833$        3,034$          

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 As Reported

Without 
GASB 68/71 

& 75 Difference

Instruction 41,185$          39,950$          1,235$            
Research 624 601 23
Public Service 1,217 1,179 38
Academic Support 10,258 9,904 354
Student Services 8,340 8,062 278
Auxiliary Programs 23,199 22,797 402
Institutional Support 7,973 7,701 272
Operations & Maint. of Plant 5,446 5,195 251
Student Aid 8,997 8,997 -                  
Other Operating Expenses 6,743 6,678 65

Total Operating Expenses 113,982$        111,064$        2,918$            

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 As Reported

Without 
GASB 68/71 

& 75 Difference

Instruction 39,915$          40,016$          (101)$              
Research 810 815 (5)
Public Service 360 366 (6)
Academic Support 10,245 10,271 (26)
Student Services 7,410 7,441 (31)
Auxiliary Programs 23,527 23,573 (46)
Institutional Support 7,377 7,407 (30)
Operations & Maint. of Plant 5,371 5,401 (30)
Student Aid 6,007 6,007 -                  
Other Operating Expenses 6,882 6,889 (7)

Total Operating Expenses 107,904$        108,186$        (282)$              

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 As Reported

Without 
GASB 68/71 

& 75 Difference

Instruction 35,628$          34,336$          1,292$            
Research 1,028 992 36
Public Service 3,419 3,296 123
Academic Support 8,861 8,566 295
Student Services 7,917 7,642 275
Auxiliary Programs 17,487 17,255 232
Institutional Support 8,327 8,164 163
Operations & Maint. of Plant 4,426 3,850 576
Student Aid 9,979 9,979 -                  
Other Operating Expenses 5,795 5,753 42

Total Operating Expenses 102,867$      99,833$        3,034$          

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 As Reported

Without 
GASB 68/71 

& 75 Difference

Instruction 41,185$          39,950$          1,235$            
Research 624 601 23
Public Service 1,217 1,179 38
Academic Support 10,258 9,904 354
Student Services 8,340 8,062 278
Auxiliary Programs 23,199 22,797 402
Institutional Support 7,973 7,701 272
Operations & Maint. of Plant 5,446 5,195 251
Student Aid 8,997 8,997 -                  
Other Operating Expenses 6,743 6,678 65

Total Operating Expenses 113,982$        111,064$        2,918$            

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 As Reported

Without 
GASB 68/71 

& 75 Difference

Instruction 39,915$          40,016$          (101)$              
Research 810 815 (5)
Public Service 360 366 (6)
Academic Support 10,245 10,271 (26)
Student Services 7,410 7,441 (31)
Auxiliary Programs 23,527 23,573 (46)
Institutional Support 7,377 7,407 (30)
Operations & Maint. of Plant 5,371 5,401 (30)
Student Aid 6,007 6,007 -                  
Other Operating Expenses 6,882 6,889 (7)

Total Operating Expenses 107,904$        108,186$        (282)$              
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019

Compensation and Benefits 71,758$         80,462$           74,642$           
Services and Supplies 13,607 17,418 20,109
Scholarships and Fellowships 10,112 8,573 6,789
Depreciation and Amortization 6,636 6,465 6,371
Other Expenses 754 1,064 (7)

Total Operating Expenses 102,867$      113,982$         107,904$         

The implementation of GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71 beginning with fiscal year 2015 and GASB Statement No. 75 in 
fiscal year 2018, has had a significant impact on the operating expenses reported by WOU. The tables on the next page 
show the effect of GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75 on operating expenses across the functional classifications.
Without the adjustments to compensation and benefits required under GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75, total oper-
ating expenses for WOU would have decreased by $3,034 thousand, or 3 percent, during 2021 and would have decreased 
by $2,918 thousand, or 3 percent, during 2020. 

Operating Expenses by Nature
Due to the way in which expenses are incurred by WOU, variances are presented and explained by analyzing changes 
in the natural classification of expenses. Each natural classification analysis can be applied to many of the functional 
expense caption items. 
The following summarizes operating expenses by natural classification:

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification (in 000's)

Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020
Compensation and Benefits costs decreased by $8,704 thousand, or 11 percent. 

• Salary and wage costs decreased by $5,228 thousand due to a decrease in the number of employees and savings resulting 
from placing employees on leave without pay and furlough. 

• Other payroll expenses decreased by $2,160 thousand as a result of the reduction in personnel. 
• Student pay decreased by $1,355 thousand as a result of having minimal on-campus operations due to the pandemic. 
• Other costs associated with compensation and benefits decreased by $140 thousand. 
• Adjustments and accruals associated with the net pension liability reporting requirement of GASB Statement Nos. 

68 and 71 increased by $5,122 thousand. See table on the previous page and Note 13 Employee Retirement Plans for 
additional information on this variance. 

• Adjustments and accruals associated with the OPEB asset/(liability) reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 
75 decreased by $5,007 thousand. See table on the previous page and Note 14 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for 
additional information on this variance. 

• Other year end accruals associated with payroll, including hourly wages payable and compensated absences, increased 
by $64 thousand. 

Services and Supplies expense decreased by $3,811 thousand, or 22 percent, during 2021. The decrease was seen in vir-
tually every category including general supplies, maintenance and repairs, other professional services, hosting expenses, 
and travel. These decreases were slightly offset by increases in medical services and insurance premiums. 
Scholarships and Fellowships expenses increased by $1,539 thousand, or 18 percent. This is primarily a result of an 
increase in CARES and CRRSAA funds distributed to students. This expense category does not include fee remissions, 
which are reported as reductions to student tuition and fee revenues. 
Depreciation and Amortization expense increased by $171 thousand, or 3 percent, primarily due to recently construct-
ed or refurbished buildings being placed in service during 2021. 
Other expenses  decreased by $310 thousand.

Page 52 of 125



18   •   Western Oregon University

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Comparison of fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2019
Compensation and Benefits costs increased by $5,820 thousand, or 8 percent. 

• Salary and wage costs increased by $299 thousand due to increased wages, offset by a decrease in the number of 
employees. 

• Retirement and health insurance costs increased by $1,986 thousand due in large part to an increase in the PERS 
contribution rate for employers. 

• Other payroll expenses increased by $282 thousand. 
• Other costs associated with compensation and benefits increased by $169 thousand. 
• Adjustments and accruals associated with the net pension liability reporting requirement of GASB Statement Nos. 

68 and 71 increased by $3,113 thousand. See table on the previous page and Note 13 Employee Retirement Plans for 
additional information on this variance. 

• Adjustments and accruals associated with the OPEB asset/(liability) reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 
75 increased by $89 thousand. See table on the previous page and Note 14 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) for 
additional information on this variance. 

• Other year end accruals associated with payroll, including hourly wages payable and compensated absences, decreased 
by $118 thousand. 

Services and Supplies expense decreased by $2,691 thousand, or 13 percent, during 2020. The decrease was seen in vir-
tually every category including general supplies, communications, maintenance and repairs, other services and supplies, 
travel and sub-contracts. These decreases were slightly offset by increases in rentals, leases, and fees and services.
Scholarships and Fellowships expenses increased by $1,784 thousand, or 26 percent. This net increase corresponds to 
increases in federal, state and athletic aid in additional to increases in federal PELL, state, affiliated foundation, insti-
tutional, and private aid. This expense category does not include fee remissions, which are reported as reductions to 
student tuition and fee revenues.
Depreciation and Amortization expense expense increased by $94 thousand, or 1 percent, primarily due to recently 
constructed or refurbished buildings being placed in service during 2020. Completed projects placed in service include 
the Natural Science renovation.
Other Expenses increased by $1,071 thousand primarily due to the reimbursement of the Perkins’ federal capital contri-
bution and other Perkins’ cancellations.

Nonoperating Expenses
Comparison of fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2020
Interest Expense decreased by $580 thousand, or 26 percent, due primarily to decreased bond interest expense. 
Comparison of fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2019
Interest Expense increased by $140 thousand, or 7 percent, due primarily to increased bond interest expense. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Assets
At June 30, 2021, WOU had $244,320 thousand in capital assets, less accumulated depreciation of $111,405 thousand, for 
net capital assets of $132,915 thousand. At June 30, 2020, WOU had $232,672 thousand in capital assets, less accumulat-
ed depreciation of $105,236 thousand, for net capital assets of $127,437 thousand. WOU is committed to a comprehen-
sive program of capital investment and facility maintenance that includes addressing current maintenance needs and 
minimizing WOU’s deferred maintenance backlog. State, federal, private, debt, and internal WOU funding are all used 
to accomplish WOU’s capital objectives. 
Capital additions totaled $12,143 thousand for 2021, and $15,781 thousand for 2020.
Capital asset additions for 2021 primarily included $11,043 thousand for construction in progress for buildings; $780 
thousand for equipment; and $320 thousand in miscellaneous additions. Capital asset additions for 2020 primarily 
included $10,309 thousand for construction in progress for buildings; $1,097 thousand for equipment and library 
materials; and $4,375 thousand for buildings and infrastructure.
See Note 5 Capital Assets for additional information.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Debt Administration
During 2021, long-term debt held by WOU decreased by $1,544 thousand from $49,347 thousand to $47,803 thousand. 

• WOU made debt service principal payments totaling $2,150 thousand on outstanding long-term debt. 
• WOU's outstanding principal increased by $876 thousand as the result of the state issuing bonds for refunding of pre-

viously held debt. 
• During 2020, long-term debt held by WOU decreased by $2,514 thousand, or 5 percent, from $51,861 thousand to 

$49,347 thousand. 
• WOU made debt service principal payments totaling $2,316 thousand on outstanding long-term debt. 
• WOU’s obligation for accreted interest on outstanding debt decreased by a net $198 thousand. 

See Note 8 Long-Term Liabilities for additional details.

Economic Outlook
As Western Oregon University continues on its path to becoming Oregon’s first public university to attain Hispanic 
Serving Institution (HSI) status, we are also working to address enrollment challenges that are both systemic and align-
ment driven. Systemic issues include the demographic shift where there are fewer high school graduates and the afford-
ability cliff that is preventing too many low and middle-income students and families from even considering a univer-
sity education. Our growth in the number of Latinx students on campus reflects strong outreach efforts and continued 
success in retention and graduation rates of Latinx students. Several exciting initiatives are underway, those include 
enrollment-specific contracts with Ruffalo Noel Levitz (RNL) to optimize financial aid offer, EAB to strengthen enroll-
ment in graduate programs and degree completion for adult learners with special emphasis on WOU:Salem. In addition, 
the university continues to expand its academic offerings and partnerships, including an agreement with Willamette 
Law School and recent approval of applied doctoral degrees in October 2021, including Doctorate of Physical Therapy 
(DPT). On retention efforts, the university received Governor’s Emergency Education Relief (GEER) grant to develop 
Destination Western, a program designed to get students ready for college. Finally, WOU is excited to add Men’s Soccer 
beginning Fall 2022.
COVID-19 presented unique challenges to campus operations in fiscal years 2020 and 2021. Federal funds have been 
provided under the Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds in three separate rounds, each including student ($2,141 
thousand CARES, $2,141 thousand CRRSAA, $6,187 thousand ARP) and institutional awards ($2,141 thousand CARES, 
$4,919 thousand CRRSAA, $6,125 thousand ARP). WOU is looking forward to returning to predominantly in-person 
modality of undergraduate courses beginning Fall 2021. The WOU Board of Trustees and university leadership remain 
committed to addressing the challenges of declining enrollment and COVID-19 to ensure a sustainable future for the 
institution while providing an affordable education that meets our students’ unique needs. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

VIABILITY RATIO
The Viability Ratio is a measure of clear financial health; the availability of expendable net position to cover debt should 
the university need to settle its obligations as of the fiscal year end. Expendable net position is the balance in total net 
position excluding investment in capital assets and non-expendable endowments of the university plus the unrestricted 
and temporarily restricted net assets of the component unit. Long-term debt includes bonds, loans and capital leases 
payable by the university as well as the long-term liabilities of the component unit. A ratio of 1.00 or greater indicates an 
institution has sufficient expendable net position to satisfy debt requirements. WOU’s Viability Ratio was 0.25 for fiscal 
year 2021.

PRIMARY RESERVE RATIO
The Primary Reserve Ratio, calculated by dividing expendable net position by operating expenses, measures the ability 
of the University to continue operating at current levels, within current restrictions, without future revenues. Total 
operating expenses include the operating expenses and interest expenses of both the university and the component 
unit. Proof of an adequate reserve ratio is often required to secure long-term financing. A ratio of 1.0 denotes that an 
institution would have the ability to cover its expenses for one year without a revenue stream. WOU’s Primary Reserve 
Ratio was 0.12 for fiscal year 2021.

NET REVENUES RATIO
The Net Revenues Ratio indicates whether the university has an operating surplus or deficit for the year. Total net 
income includes operating income (loss) plus net nonoperating revenues of the university, excluding capital gifts and 
debt service appropriations, plus total change in unrestricted net assets of the component unit. Total revenues include 
operating and net nonoperating revenues of the university plus unrestricted revenues, gains and other support of the 
component unit. A positive ratio indicates that the university experienced an operating surplus for the year. WOU’s Net 
Revenues Ratio was -1.32 percent for fiscal year 2021.

RETURN ON NET ASSETS RATIO
The Return on Net Assets Ratio determines whether the university is financially better off than in previous years by 
measuring total economic return. Total change in net position includes the change in net position for the University plus 
the change in total net assets for the component unit. Total beginning net position includes the beginning net position 
of the university plus the total beginning net assets of the component unit. A positive ratio indicates a net increase in 
total net position at the end of the year. WOU’s Return on Net Assets Ratio for fiscal year 2021 was 8.41 percent. 

DEBT BURDEN RATIO
This ratio examines the institution’s dependence on borrowed funds as a source of financing its mission and the relative 
cost of borrowing to overall expenditures. It compares the level of current debt service with the institution’s total 
expenditures. Total debt service includes the interest and principal payments on capital debt of both the university and 
the component unit. Total expenditures include total expenses, including any loss on sale of assets and transfers, less 
depreciation plus debt service principal payments of both the university and the component unit. WOU’s Debt Burden 
Ratio for fiscal year 2021 was 4.02 percent.

2021 2020 2019
Viability Ratio  (expendable  net pos ition to long-term debt) 0.27 0.21 0.48
Primary Re s e rv e  Ratio (expendable  net pos ition to operating expens es ) 0.13 0.09 0.24
Ne t Re v e nue s  Ratio  (total net income to total revenues ) -0.58% -16.08% -1.28%
Re turn on Ne t As s e ts  Ratio (change  in net pos ition to beginning net pos ition) 9.16% -0.98% 7.16%
De bt Burde n Ratio (debt s ervice  to total expenditures ) 4.02% 3.61% 4.03%
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
Western Oregon University

As of J une 30, 2021 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents   (Note 2) 15,513$      23,281$        
Collateral from Securities  Lending  (Note 2) 264              491               
Accounts  Receivable, Net  (Note 3) 16,844         12,843          
Notes Receivable, Net  (Note 4) 384              535               
Inventories 1,358           1,385            
Prepaid Expenses 784              531               

Total Current Assets 35,147         39,066          
Noncurrent Assets

Investments  (Note 2) 16,754         12,744          
Notes Receivable, Net (Note 4) 1,600           2,113            
Net OPEB Asset (Note 14) 4,125           526               
Capital Assets , Net of Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5) 132,915      127,437        

Total Noncurrent Assets 155,394      142,820        
Total Assets 190,541$    181,886$      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) 18,552$      13,224$        

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts  Payable and Accrued Liabilities  (Note 7) 10,957$      11,764$        
Deposits 227              241               
Obligations Under Securities  Lending (Note 2) 264              491               
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities  (Note 8) 4,560           4,854            
Unearned Revenues 2,982           3,393            

Total Current Liabilities 18,990         20,743          
Noncurrent Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities  (Note 8) 48,750         50,129          
Net Pension Liability (Note 13) 49,387         37,199          
OPEB Liability (Note 14) 1,985           2,163            

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 100,122      89,491          
Total Liabilities 119,112$    110,234$      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) 2,137$         2,193$          

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 85,254$      78,243$        
Restricted Expendable For:

Expendable:
Gifts , Grants  and Contracts 1,243           345               
Student Loans 5,841           6,323            
Capital Projects 168              627               
Debt Service 120              184               
OPEB Asset 5,647           526               

Unrestricted (Note 9) (10,428)       (3,565)           
Total Net Position 87,845$      82,683$        

   
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .

(In thousands)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Western Oregon University Development Foundation - Component Unit

As of J une 30, 2021
2020 

(restated)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 543$            451$             
Investments  (Note 2) 23,638         18,590          
Pledges Receivable 44                 61                 
Contributions receivable 1,833           2,833            
Due from WOU 446              108               
Property and Equipment, Net 135              140               
Total Assets 26,639$      22,183$        

LIABILITIES
Accounts  Payable and Accrued Liabilities 30$              26$               
Annuities  Payable 939              847               
Total Liabilities 969              873               

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions

Undesignated 3,669           522               
Designated 634              929               

With Donor Restrictions
Purpose Restrictions 6,781           5,617            
Perpetual Restrictions 14,586         14,242          

Total Net Assets 25,670         21,310          
   

Total Liabilities &  Net Assets 26,639$      22,183$        
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .

(In thousands)
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Western Oregon University

For the Years Ended J une 30, 2021 2020

OPERATING REVENUES
Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Allowances of $16,101 and $16,557, respectively) 29,037$        25,578$       
Federal Grants  and Contracts 6,015 6,186
State and Local Grants  and Contracts 1,515 813
Nongovernmental Grants  and Contracts -                 251
Educational Department Sales  and Services 484 565
Auxiliary Enterprises  Revenues (Net of Allowances of $1,004 and $1,556, respectively) 7,082 15,481
Other Operating Revenues 2,677 2,369

Total Operating Revenues 46,810 51,243

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction 35,628 41,185
Research 1,028 624
Public Service 3,419 1,217
Academic Support 8,861 10,258
Student Services 7,917 8,340
Auxiliary Programs 17,487 23,199
Institutional Support 8,327 7,973
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 4,426 5,446
Student Aid 9,979 8,997
Other Operating Expenses 5,795 6,743

Total Operating Expenses (Note 11) 102,867 113,982
Operating Loss (56,057) (62,739)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Government Appropriations  (Note 12) 29,981 28,202
Federal and State Grants 21,318 17,116
Gifts 1,843 1,482
Investment Activity  (Note 10) 805 1,831
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets 2 80
Interest Expense (1,688) (2,268)
Other Nonoperating Items 329 37

Net Nonoperating Revenues 52,590 46,480
Loss Before Other Nonoperating Revenues (3,467) (16,259)

Debt Service Appropriations  (Note 13) 382 382
Capital Grants  and Gifts 8,247 10,155

Total Other Nonoperating Revenues 8,629 10,537
Increase/(Decrease) In Net Position 5,162 (5,722)

NET POS ITION
Beginning Balance 82,683 88,405

Ending Balance 87,845$        82,683$       
    
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .

(In thousands)
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STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Western Oregon University Development Foundation - Component Unit

For the Years Ended J une 30,

Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions

Total Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions

Total

REVENUES
Contributions 684$                 1,360$         2,044$    800$                  5,353$         6,153$   
Net Investment Return 207                   4,383           4,590      35                      591              626        
Miscellaneous 14                     72                 86            11                      231              242        

Total Revenues 905                   5,815           6,720      846                    6,175           7,021     

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 4,307                (4,307)          -          1,260                 (1,260)          -         

EXPENSES
University and Scholarships Program 1,758                -               1,758      1,826                 -               1,826     
Managerial and General 291                   -               291         400                    -               400        
Fundraising 311                   -               311         444                    -               444        

Total Expenses 2,360                -               2,360      2,670                 -               2,670     

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,852                1,508           4,360      (564)                   4,915           4,351     

NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year 1,451                19,859         21,310    2,015                 14,944         16,959   
   
NET ASSETS, End of Year 4,303$             21,367$      25,670$ 1,451$               19,859$       21,310$ 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .

2020 (restated)
(In thousands)

2021
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Western Oregon University

For the Years Ended J une 30, 2021 2020
 (In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Tuition and Fees 30,017$         26,994$         

Grants and Contracts 5,756             8,911             
Educational Department Sales and Services 483                565                
Auxiliary Enterprises Operations 7,058             15,860           
Payments to Employees for Compensation and Benefits (69,029)          (76,894)          
Payments to Suppliers (15,433)          (19,087)          
Student Financial Aid (9,694)            (8,297)            
Other Operating Receipts 2,631             2,202             

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (48,211)          (49,746)          

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government Appropriations 29,981           28,202           
Federal and State Grants 16,247           17,116           
Other Gifts and Private Contracts 1,843             1,284             
Net Internal Agency Fund Payments (14)                 29                  

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 48,057           46,631           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Debt Service Appropriations 382                382                
Capital Grants and Gifts 10,435           10,158           
Bond Proceeds from Capital Debt -                     -                     
Sales of Capital Assets 28                  80                  
Purchases of Capital Assets (11,756)          (15,736)          
Interest Payments on Capital Debt (1,938)            (2,199)            
Principal Payments on Capital Debt (1,560)            (2,279)            

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (4,409)            (9,594)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Sales (Purchases) of Investments (3,964)            12,626           
Income on Investments and Cash Balances 759                1,997             

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (3,205)            14,623           
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (7,768)            1,914             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning Balance 23,281           21,367           
Ending Balance 15,513$         23,281$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, continued
Western Oregon University

For the Years Ended J une 30, 2021 2020
 
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss (56,057) (62,739)$        
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by
   Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense 6,637 6,465
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable (1,119) 2,527
Notes Receivable 664 610
Inventories 27 (153)
Prepaid Expenses (253) (158)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (614) 785
Long-Term Liabilities (113) (155)
Unearned Revenue (411) 153
Net Pension Liability and Related Deferrals 8,219 3,095
OPEB (Asset)/Liability and Related Deferrals (5,191) (176)

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (48,211)$        (49,746)$        

NONCASH INVESTING, NONCAPITAL FINANCING, AND CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments Recognized as a
   Component of Investment Activity (46)$               (166)$             
Capital assets acquired through capital lease 110$              399$              
Refunding

New bonds issued 12,015$         -$               
Old bonds refunded (11,138)$        -$               

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(In thousands)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (dollars in thousands) 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity
Western Oregon University (WOU or university) is governed by the Western Oregon University Board of Trustees 
(Board), a citizen board appointed by the Governor with confirmation by the State Senate. WOU is located in 
Monmouth, Oregon.
The financial reporting entity includes WOU and the Western Oregon University Development Foundation 
(foundation), which is reported as a discretely presented component unit under the guidelines established by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations 
are Component Units. Discretely presented means that the statements are included separately in the financial report. 
See Note 19 for additional information relating to this component unit. The Governor of the State of Oregon (state) 
appoints the WOU Board, and because WOU receives some financial support from the state, WOU is a discretely 
presented component unit of the state and is included in the state’s comprehensive annual financial report. 

B. Financial Statement Presentation
WOU's financial accounting records are maintained in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
as prescribed in applicable pronouncements of the GASB. The financial statement presentation required by GASB 
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and 
Universities—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 34, modified by GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported 
as Assets and Liabilities, provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of WOU's assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position, and cash 
flows. 
In preparing the financial statements, interfund transfers between university funds and internal revenues and expenses 
associated with self-supporting auxiliary and service center operations have been eliminated. Unless otherwise stated, 
dollars are presented in thousands.
Financial statements of the foundation are discretely presented because of the difference in its reporting model. The 
foundation’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB). As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from 
GASB revenue criteria and presentation. Accordingly, those financial statements have been reported on separate pages 
following the respective counterpart financial statements of the university. No modifications have been made to the 
foundation’s financial information included in the university’s financial report.

C. Basis of Accounting
For financial reporting purposes, WOU is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type 
activities. Accordingly, the WOU financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recorded when incurred.
NEWLY IMPLEMENTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. GASB Statement No 84 improves guidance re-
garding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activ-
ities should be reported. The Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities and guidance on how to 
report activities meeting the criteria in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. The Statement is effective for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. The implementation of GASB 84 does not have a significant impact on the financial 
statements of the university.
UPCOMING ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 improves the accounting and financial 
reporting for leases and is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receiv-
able and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about leasing 
activities. This Statement will substantially impact the university’s lease accounting and reporting.
Between July 2019 and June 2020, GASB issued the following statements which do not currently apply to WOU, but 
may under certain circumstances: Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020; Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Of-
fered Rates; Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements; 
Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (dollars in thousands)

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash 
and cash equivalents consist of: cash on hand, cash and investments held by the state in the Oregon Short-Term Fund 
(OSTF), and cash held by U.S. Bank as required by the U.S. Department of Education for Title IV funds. 

E. Investments
Investments are reported at fair value as determined by market prices. Unrealized gains or losses on investments are 
reported as investment activity in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
Investments are classified as noncurrent assets in the Statement of Net Position. 

F. Receivables
Accounts receivable consists primarily of tuition and fees charged to students and auxiliary enterprise services provided 
to students, faculty and staff. Accounts receivable for tuition and fee charges are recorded net of estimated uncollectable 
amounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Grants and contracts receivable include amounts 
due from federal, state and local governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable 
expenditures made pursuant to the university’s grants and contracts. Capital construction receivables include amounts 
due from the state in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the grant agreements 
between the university and the state for facilities projects funded by the state. 
Notes receivable consist primarily of student loans receivable due from the federal Perkins Loan Program and from 
other loans administered by the university. Construction reimbursements loan receivables are amounts receivable from 
the state in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the contracts between the 
university and the state for facilities projects funded by the university. Construction Reimbursements can be current or 
long-term depending on the estimated timing of completion of construction projects. WOU does not currently hold any 
notes receivable from the state related to construction reimbursements.

G. Inventories
Inventories are recorded at cost, with cost being generally determined by a first-in, first-out or average basis. Inventories 
consist primarily of supplies in storerooms and physical plant stores.

H. Capital Assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost on the date acquired or at acquisition value on the date donated. WOU capitalizes 
equipment with unit costs of $5 thousand or more and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. WOU 
capitalizes real property expenditures that increase the functionality and/or extend the useful life of the real property if 
total expenditures meet or exceed $50 thousand, depending on the type of real property. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 15 to 
50 years for buildings, 10 to 20 years for infrastructure and land improvements, 10 years for library books and 5 to 
11 years for equipment. Amortization terms of intangible assets vary depending on the factors relating to the specific 
asset. Depreciation is not applied to land, museum collections, works of art or historical treasures, or library special 
collections.

I. Unearned Revenues
Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees, grants and contracts, and auxiliary enterprises activi-
ties in which cash has been received, but revenues will be earned in subsequent fiscal year(s). 

J. Compensated Absences
WOU accrues a liability for vacation leave and other compensated absences that were earned but not used during the 
current or prior fiscal year for which employees can receive compensation in a future period. An estimate is made to 
allocate this liability between its current and noncurrent components. 
Sick leave is recorded as an expense when paid. 

K. Net Pension Liability
The net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and 
pension expense, are actuarially determined at the system-wide Plan level and are allocated to employers based on their 
proportionate share. WOU is included in the proportionate share for all state agencies. The university’s proportionate 
share of all state agencies is allocated to WOU by the Oregon State Department of Administrative Services. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 (dollars in thousands) 

L. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liabilities and Asset
The OPEB liabilities and asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS, PEBB, 
OPEB, and OPEB expense, are actuarially determined at the system-wide Plan level and are allocated to employers based 
on their proportionate share. WOU is included in the proportionate share for all state agencies. The university’s propor-
tionate share of all state agencies is allocated to WOU by the State of Oregon Department of Administrative Services. 
Investments are reported at fair value.

M. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net position in one period that is applicable to future 
periods. These deferred outflows have a positive effect on net position that is similar to assets, but they are not consid-
ered assets. Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of net position that is applicable to future periods. 
These deferred inflows have a negative effect on net position, but they are not considered liabilities. Deferred outflows 
and inflows are related to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans. See Note 6 Deferred Inflows and 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Note 13 Employee Retirement Plans and Note 14 Other Postemployment Benefit Plans 
(OPEB) for additional information.

N. Net Position
WOU’s net position is classified as follows:
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
Net investment in capital assets represents the total investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
amortization, less outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. 
RESTRICTED – EXPENDABLE
Restricted expendable includes resources which WOU is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with 
restrictions imposed by external parties.
UNRESTRICTED
Unrestricted are resources that may be used at the discretion of the Board. 

O. Restricted/Unrestricted Resources
The university has no formal policy addressing which resources to use when both restricted and unrestricted net posi-
tion are available for the same purpose. University personnel decide which resources to use at the time expenses are in-
curred. Factors used to determine which resources to use include relative priorities of the university in accordance with 
the university’s strategic initiatives and externally imposed matching requirements of certain restricted funds. Major 
capital purchases are many times split funded from multiple restricted and unrestricted funding sources.

P. Endowments
There are no amounts reported as Nonexpendable Endowments on the Statement of Net Position. Endowments that 
benefit WOU are owned and reported by the WOU Development Foundation.
The Board established a quasi-endowment in 2019. The quasi-endowment was funded with $1 million. 
The foundation policy is to annually distribute, for spending purposes to the university, four percent of the preceding 20 
quarter moving average of the market value of the endowment funds and to maintain the purchasing power of the funds 
as nearly as prudent investment permits. 

Q. Income Taxes
WOU is treated as a governmental entity for tax purposes. As such, WOU is generally not subject to federal and state 
income taxes. However, WOU remains subject to income taxes on any income that is derived from a trade or business 
regularly carried on and not in furtherance of the purpose for which it was granted exemption from income taxes. No 
income tax is recorded for the years ended June 30, 2021 or 2020, because there is no significant amount of taxes on such 
unrelated business income for WOU.

R. Revenues and Expenses
WOU has classified its revenues and expenses as either operating or nonoperating according to the following criteria:
Operating revenues and expenses generally have the characteristics of exchange transactions. These transactions can 
be defined as an exchange in which two or more entities both receive and sacrifice value, such as purchases and sales of 
goods or services. Examples of operating revenues include student tuition and fees, sales and services of auxiliary enter-
prises, most federal, state and local grants and contracts, and other operating revenues. Examples of operating expenses 
include employee compensation and benefits, scholarships and fellowships, utilities, supplies and other services, profes-
sional fees, and depreciation.
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Nonoperating revenues and expenses generally have the characteristics of nonexchange transactions. In a nonexchange 
transaction, WOU receives value without directly giving equal value in exchange. Examples of nonoperating revenues 
include state appropriations, nonexchange grants, gifts, investment activity, and contributions. Nonoperating expenses 
are defined in GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Gov-
ernmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statement - and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. Examples of nonoperating expenses include 
interest on capital debt and loss on sale of assets.

S. State Support
WOU receives support from the state in the form of general fund and lottery appropriations and debt service appropri-
ations for some Oregon Department of Energy loans. See Note 12 Government Appropriations for details on appropria-
tions. 
In addition to appropriations, the state provides funding for plant facilities on the university’s campus. Capital projects 
for new facilities and capital improvements and repair are funded by philanthropy, campus paid debt and resources, 
and state-paid debt. The state legislature considers projects from all seven public universities for allocation of Oregon’s 
bonding capacity. Funds for capital projects funded by state-paid debt are provided through grant agreements between 
WOU and the State. Revenue is recorded as Capital Grants in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position when appropriate expenditures are reimbursable per the grant agreements. Funds for capital projects funded 
by campus paid debt can also be funded through Oregon’s bonding capacity. At the time that the bonds are sold the 
state instructs WOU to record a liability for the debt and a receivable for construction reimbursements. The receivable is 
reduced as expenditures on the capital project are completed and reimbursed by the State.
Facilities funded by philanthropy, state-paid debt and campus paid debt are reflected as completed assets or construc-
tion in progress in the Statement of Net Position. The obligations for the bonds issued by the state are not obligations 
of WOU. WOU is obligated to pay contracts for projects funded by campus paid debt. These contracts are included as 
current and long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

T. Allowances
Student tuition and fees and campus housing fees included in auxiliary enterprises revenues are reported net of 
scholarship allowances. A scholarship allowance is the difference between the university’s stated rates and charges, 
and the amounts actually paid by students and/or third parties making payments on behalf of the students. Under this 
approach, scholarships awarded by the university are considered as reductions in tuition and fee revenues rather than 
as expenses. Additionally, certain governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and payments from other federal, state or 
nongovernmental programs, are required to be recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the university’s 
financial statement. To the extent that revenues from such programs are applied to tuition, fees, and other student 
charges, the university has reported a corresponding scholarship allowance. 
WOU has three types of allowances that net into tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprise revenues. Tuition and housing 
waivers, provided directly by WOU, amounted to $6,692 and $6,615 for the fiscal years ended 2021 and 2020, respective-
ly. Revenues from financial aid programs (e.g. Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants, and Oregon 
Opportunity Grants) used for paying student tuition and fees and campus housing was estimated to be $8,853 and 
$9,894 for the fiscal years ended 2021 and 2020, respectively. Bad debt expense is included as an allowance to operating 
revenues and is estimated to be $1,560 and $1,604 for the fiscal years ended 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

U. Federal Student Loan Programs
WOU receives proceeds from the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. Since WOU transmits this grantor supplied 
moneys without having administrative or direct financial involvement in the program, these loans are reported in an 
internal agency fund. Federal student loans received by WOU students but not reported in operations was $18,987 and 
$23,745 for the fiscal years ended 2021 and 2020, respectively.

V. Deposit Liabilities
Deposit Liabilities primarily consist of fund balances held by WOU on behalf of student groups and organizations that 
account for activities in the WOU accounting system and whose cash is part of the cash held on deposit with the Oregon 
State Treasury.

W. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that could affect the reported amounts of assets and deferred outflow 
of resources, liabilities and deferred inflow of resources, revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
At June 30, 2021, and 2020, the majority of WOU’s cash and investments were held in custody with the Oregon State 
Treasury (OST). The OST manages these invested assets through several commingled investment pools. The operating 
funds of WOU are commingled with cash and investments from other public universities in Oregon and referred to 
collectively as the Public University Fund (PUF). The investments held in the PUF are managed by the OST and ad-
ministered by the statutorily defined designated university, currently Oregon State University. WOU is a participant in 
the PUF investment pools along with other public universities from the State. Each underlying investment pool has an 
investment policy and set of objectives identifying risk and return parameters for the respective investment pool. The 
OST invests these deposits in high grade, dollar-denominated, short and intermediate-term fixed income securities. The 
Oregon Investment Council (OIC) provides oversight and counsel on the investment policies for each investment pool 
held in the PUF.
In general, deposits and investment securities as described below are exposed to various risks such as credit, concen-
tration of credit, custodial credit, interest rate and foreign currency. Although the objective of each investment pool is 
to preserve capital within defined risk parameters, it is likely that the value of the investment securities will fluctuate 
during short periods of time, and it is possible that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements. For more information on the investment risk exposure, see Note 2.B below.
For full disclosure regarding cash and investments managed by the OST, a copy of the OST audited annual financial 
report may be obtained by writing to the Oregon State Treasury, 350 Winter St, NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR 97301-3896 or 
by linking via the internet at: www.oregon.gov/treasury/Reports/Pages/Annual-Reports.aspx

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents are classified as current and noncurrent which include both restricted and unrestricted cash 
and are summarized as follows:

 J une 30, 
2021 

 June 30, 
2020 

Current 
Unrestricted 3,511$         13,710$             
Unrestricted Cash Reserve 588 570
Debt Service Cash Reserve 2,249 887
Quasi-Endowment 911 56
Restricted For:
Student Aid 1,711 2,104
Debt Service 639 303
Payroll Vendor Payments 4,992 4,634

Student Groups and Campus 
     Organizations 84 186
Title IV Perkins Loan Cash 815 812
Petty Cash 13 19

Total 15,513$       23,281$             

DEPOSITS WITH OREGON STATE TREASURY
WOU maintains the majority of its cash balances on deposit with OST. These deposits at the OST are held, on a pooled 
basis as described above, in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is a short-term cash and investment pool 
available for use by all state agencies or by agreement for related state agencies, such as WOU. The OST invests these 
deposits in high-grade short-term investment securities. While WOU is not required by statute to collateralize deposits, 
the university has a contractual obligation with the OST to collateralize deposits within 24 hours of receipt. At the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, WOU cash and cash equivalents on deposit at OST were $14,685 and $22,449, 
respectively.
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CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK—DEPOSITS
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a financial institution failure, cash deposits will not be returned to a 
depositor. The university and the state do not have formal policies regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. However, 
banking regulations and Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapter 295 establish the insurance and collateral requirements 
for deposits in the OSTF. WOU cash balances held on deposit at the OST are invested continuously, therefore custodial 
credit risk exposure to the OST is low. Additionally, cash balances on deposit with US Bank are collateralized, therefore 
invested continuously, resulting in low custodial credit risk.
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK—DEPOSITS
Deposits in foreign currency run the risk of changing value due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Per PUF poli-
cy, all deposits are in U.S. currency and therefore not exposed to foreign currency risk. 
OTHER DEPOSITS
For the years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, WOU had cash at US Bank held for Title IV Perkins Loans of $815 and 
$812, respectively. Additionally, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, WOU had vault and petty cash balances of 
$13 and $19, respectively.

B. Investments
The majority of WOU’s operating funds are invested in the PUF. University investments in the PUF are invested in the 
Core Bond Fund (CBF) managed by the OST. The CBF invests primarily in intermediate-term fixed income securities 
and is managed with an investment objective to maximize total return (i.e., principal and income) over an intermediate 
time horizon within stipulated risk parameters. The CBF is actively managed to maintain an average duration of four to 
five years, through a diversified portfolio of quality, investment grade fixed income securities as defined in the portfolio 
guidelines. 
Additionally, board designated quasi-endowment assets are managed separately by the State Treasury, invested in 
mutual and/or index funds, and directed by external investment managers who are under contract to the OIC. Per 
policy, the endowment assets have a medium to long-term time horizon. As such, the assets are invested with a medium-
term horizon while maintaining a prudent level of risk.
All investments are managed as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. Due to the 
level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investment securities could occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the 
Statement of Net Position. 
Significant events in domestic and international investment markets or aggressive action by the Federal Open Market 
Committee to influence both short and long-term interest rates contribute to price volatility. Consequently, the fair 
value of WOU’s investments is exposed to price volatility which could result in a substantial change in the fair value of 
certain investments from the amounts reported as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.
Investments are all classified as noncurrent and include both restricted and unrestricted funds. At June 30, 2021 and 
2020, WOU had a total of $16,754 and $12,744 in investments, respectively.
Investments of the WOU discretely presented component unit are summarized at fair value as follows:

J une 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

Investment Type:
Marketable Securities 23,353$     17,632$       
Money Market Funds and Cash 236             912              
Cash Value of Life Insurance Policies  49               46                

Total Investments 23,638$     18,590$       

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of an investment fails to fulfill its obligations. WOU has an investment policy for 
each segment of its investment portfolio. As of June 30, 2021, approximately 94.5 percent of investments in the CBF were 
subject to credit risk reporting. Fixed income securities rated by the credit agencies as BBB to AAA, indicating the issuer 
has a strong capacity to pay principal and interest when due, totaled $223,564, or 82.8 percent of the PUF Core Bond 
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Fund. Fixed income securities which have not been evaluated by the rating agencies totaled $31,546, or 11.7 percent of 
the PUF Core Bond Fund. The PUF Core Bond Fund totaled $255,110, of which WOU owned $15,509, or 5.7 percent. 
As of June 30, 2021, WOU’s endowment assets managed by the State Treasury are invested in commingled funds and 
do not have independently published ratings.
As of June 30, 2020, approximately 91.5 percent of investments in the CBF were subject to credit risk reporting. Fixed 
income securities rated by the credit agencies as BBB to AAA, indicating the issuer has a strong capacity to pay prin-
cipal and interest when due, totaled $120,344, or 62.6 percent of the PUF Core Bond Fund. Fixed income securities 
which have not been evaluated by the rating agencies totaled $55,753, or 29 percent of the PUF Core Bond Fund. The 
PUF Core Bond Fund totaled $192,396, of which WOU owned $11,737, or 6.1 percent. 
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the 
university will not be able to recover the value of an investment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside 
party. The OIC has no formal policy regarding the holding of securities by a custodian or counterparty. For the years 
ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, the university’s investments were exposed to custodial credit risk indirectly through 
the OST. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, none of the investment securities were uninsured and unregistered, with securities 
held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the university’s name.
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
Concentration of credit risk refers to potential losses if total investments are concentrated with one or few issuers. The 
PUF policy for reducing this risk for fixed income securities is that, with the exception of U.S. Government and Agen-
cy issues, no more than five percent of the bond portfolio, at par value, will be invested in securities of a single issuer or 
no more than three percent of the individual issue. The PUF held no securities from a single issuer that exceeded five 
percent of the bond portfolio.
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
Foreign currency risk is the risk that investments may lose value due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Per PUF 
investment policy, all investments are to be in U.S. dollar denominated securities, therefore no amounts of the PUF 
CBF investments had reportable foreign currency risk at June 30, 2021 or 2020. 
As of June 30, 2021, approximately 32.3 percent or $403 of WOU endowments managed by the State Treasury were sub-
ject to foreign currency risk. As of June 30, 2020, 28.9 percent or $291, of the quasi-endowment investments were held 
subject to foreign currency risk.
INTEREST RATE RISK
Investments in fixed income securities are subject to the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of the investments. As of June 30, 2021, securities in the CBF held subject to interest rate risk totaling $255,110 
had an average duration of 4.04 years. As of June 30, 2021, WOU quasi-endowments managed through the State Trea-
sury held subject to interest rate risk totaling $485 had an average duration of 7.06 years. As of June 30, 2020, securities 
in the CBF held subject to interest rate risk totaling $176,097 had an average duration of 3.77 years. As of June 30, 2020, 
WOU quasi-endowments managed through the State Treasury held subject to interest rate risk totaling $280 had an av-
erage duration of 6.20 years. Duration measures the change in the value of a fixed income security that will result from 
a 1% change in interest rates.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Investments are reported at fair value as determined by OST, based on a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the input 
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest 
priority to Level 3 measurements: 

• Level 1 – Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted market prices that are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly, includ-

ing inputs in markets that are not considered to be active; and 
• Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable. These are only used if relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available.

Inputs are used in applying valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market participants use to 
make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. In addition to the underlying reported net asset values 
(NAV), which generally serve as the primary valuation input, other inputs may include liquidity factors and broad 
credit data. An investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is signifi-
cant to the fair value measurement. 
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The fair value of WOU’s investments in the PUF are based on the investments’ net asset value (NAV) per share provided 
by the Treasury. Fair value measurements for the university's investments in the CBF at June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled 
$15,509 and $11,737, respectively.
WOU’s quasi-endowment assets are based upon the investments’ fair value measurements and are as follows:

C. Securities Lending
State’s securities pursuant to a form of loan agreement. Both the state and borrowers maintain the right to terminate all 
securities lending transactions on demand. WOU’s cash on deposit with the OST is subject to securities lending. There 
were no significant violations of the provisions of securities lending agreements during the years ended June 30, 2021, and 
2020. 
During the year, State Street had the authority to lend short-term, fixed income, and equity securities and receive as 
collateral U.S. dollar and foreign currency cash, U.S. government and agency securities, and foreign sovereign debt of 
Organization of Economic Cooperation and Development countries. Borrowers were required to deliver collateral for 
each loan equal to not less than 102 percent of the market value of the loaned U.S. security. The custodian did not have the 
ability to pledge or sell collateral securities absent a borrower default, and during the year the state did impose restrictions 
on the amount of the loans that the custodian made on its behalf. The OST is fully indemnified by the custodian against 
losses due to borrower default. There were no losses during the year from the failure of borrowers to return loaned 
securities.
State Street, as lending agent, has created a fund to reinvest cash collateral received on behalf of the OSTF and Oregon 
state agencies and related agencies, including WOU. As permitted under the fund’s Declaration of Trust (Declaration), 
participant purchases and redemptions are transacted at $1 per unit (“constant value”) based on the amortized cost of the 
fund’s investments. Accordingly, the securities lending collateral held and the obligation to the lending agent are both 
stated at constant value on the statement of net position.
The fair value of investments held by the fund is based upon valuations provided by a recognized pricing service. These 
funds are not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but the custodial agent is subject to the oversight of 
the Federal Reserve Board and the Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks. No income from the funds was assigned to any 
other funds.
The maturities of investments made with the cash collateral generally do not match the maturities of the securities loaned. 
Since the securities loaned are callable on demand by either the lender or borrower, the life of the loans at June 30, 2021, 
and 2020, is effectively one day. As of June 30, 2021, and 2020, the state had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because 
the amounts owed to borrowers exceeded the amounts borrowers owed to the State.
The fair value of the university’s share of securities lending balances on loan comprised the following:

J une 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

Level 1 485$          443$            
Level 2 760             563              
Total 1,245$       1,006$         

J une 30, 
2021

 June 30, 
2020 

Investment Type
U.S. Treasury and Agency Securities 329$     764$      
Domestic Fixed Income Securities 253 77
   Total 582$     841$      

The fair value of the university’s share of total cash and securities collateral received as of June 30, 2021, and 2020 was 
$594 and $858, respectively. The fair value of the university’s share of investments purchased with cash collateral as of 
June 30, 2021, and 2020 was $264 and $491, respectively.
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts Receivable comprised the following:

 J une 30, 
2021 

 June 30, 
2020 

Student Tuition and Fees 13,095$       13,306$         
Federal Grants  and Contracts 8,679 2,319

State Capital Construction Grants  
     and Contracts 1,109 3,298

Auxiliary Enterprises  and Other 
     Operating Activities 1,996 1,923

State, Other Government, and Private 
     Gifts , Grants  and Contracts 493 73
Other 156 420

25,528 21,339
Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (8,684) (8,496)
Accounts  Receivable, Net 16,844$       12,843$         

Current Noncurrent Total Current Noncurrent Total

Institutional and Other 
Student Loans 229$         4$                    233$            439$          4$                  443$           

Federal Student Loans 424           1,908               2,332           546            2,455             3,001          
653           1,912               2,565           985            2,459             3,444          

Less:  Allowance for 
Doubtful Accounts (269)          (312)                 (581)            (450)          (346)               (796)            

Notes Receivable, Net 384$         1,600$             1,984$         535$          2,113$           2,648$        

J une 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

4. NOTES RECEIVABLE
Student loans made through the Federal Perkins Loan Program are funded through interest earnings and repayment 
of loans. Federal Perkins loans deemed uncollectable are assigned to the U.S. Department of Education for collection. 
WOU has provided an allowance for uncollectable loans, which in management’s opinion, will absorb loans that will 
ultimately be written off.
Institutional and Other Student Loans include loans offered through the university itself and other various forms of 
non-federal loans programs. Notes Receivable comprised the following:
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Balance 
July 1, 
2019  Additions 

 Transfer 
Completed 

Assets 

 Retire. 
And 

Adjust. 

Balance 
June 30, 

2020  Additions 

 Transfer 
Completed 

Assets 

 Retirements 
and 

Adjustments 

 Balance 
J une 30, 

2021 

Capital Assets,
Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable:
Land 5,680$     -$             -$                 -$             5,680$       -$             -$                -$                5,680$         
Capitalized Collections 667          -               -                   -               667            1               -                  -                  668              
Construction in Progress 8,443       10,309      (9,974)          -               8,778         11,043      (430)            -                  19,391         

Total Capital Assets,
   Non-depreciable/Non-amortizable 14,790     10,309      (9,974)          -               15,125       11,044      (430)            -                  25,739         

Capital Assets, Depreciable/
Amortizable:
Equipment 11,196     1,056        -                   (417)         11,835       780           -                  (163)            12,452         
Library Materials 5,591       41             -                   (134)         5,498         44             -                  (332)            5,210           
Buildings 168,783   4,013        9,974           -               182,770     -               430             -                  183,200       
Land Improvements 5,429       -               -                   -               5,429         -               -                  -                  5,429           
Improvements Other Than Buildings 2,919       -               -                   -               2,919         165           -                  -                  3,084           
Infrastructure 6,864       362           -                   -               7,226         -               -                  -                  7,226           
Intangible Assets 1,870       -               -                   -               1,870         110           -                  -                  1,980           

Total Capital Assets,
Depreciable/Amortizable 202,652   5,472        9,974           (551)         217,547     1,099        430             (495)            218,581       

Less Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortization for:
Equipment (8,499)      (974)         -                   417           (9,056)        (979)         -                  -                  (10,035)       
Library Materials (5,177)      (101)         -                   134           (5,144)        (81)           -                  136              (5,089)         
Buildings (74,619)    (4,623)      -                   -               (79,242)      (4,841)      -                  332              (83,751)       
Land Improvements (3,358)      (242)         -                   -               (3,600)        (243)         -                  -                  (3,843)         
Improvements Other Than Buildings (1,817)      (226)         -                   -               (2,043)        (201)         -                  -                  (2,244)         
Infrastructure (3,980)      (299)         -                   -               (4,279)        (286)         -                  -                  (4,565)         
Intangible Assets (1,871)      -               -                   -               (1,871)        (7)             -                  -                  (1,878)         

Total Accumulated Depreciation/
Amortization (99,321)    (6,465)      -                   551           (105,235)    (6,638)      -                  468              (111,405)     

Total Capital Assets, Net 118,121$ 9,316$      -$                 -$             127,437$   5,505$      -$                (27)$            132,915$     

Capital Assets Summary
Capital Assets, Non-depreciable/

Non-amortizable 14,790$   10,309$    (9,974)$        -$             15,125$     11,044$    (430)$          -$                25,739$       
Capital Assets, Depreciable/

Amortizable 202,652   5,472        9,974           (551)         217,547     1,099        430             (495)            218,581       
Total Cost of Capital Assets 217,442   15,781      -                   (551)         232,672     12,143      -                  (495)            244,320       
Less Accumulated Depreciation/

Amortization (99,321)    (6,465)      -                   551           (105,235)    (6,638)      -                  468              (111,405)     
Total Capital Assets, Net 118,121$ 9,316$      -$                 -$             127,437$   5,505$      -$                (27)$            132,915$     

5. CAPITAL ASSETS
The following schedule reflects the changes in capital assets:
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6. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
J une 30, 

2021
 June 30, 

2020 
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 3,993$       4,432$         
Changes in Assumptions 2,651         5,047           
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments  5,807         -              
Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions -              39                
Change in Proportionate Share 1,589         1,326           
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 2,174         2,051           

OPEB
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 91               275              
Changes in Assumptions 48               52                
Change in Proportionate Share 1,715         2                  
Difference Between Expected and Actual Earnings 484             -              

Total Deferred Outflows 18,552$     13,224$       

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension

Differences Between Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions 1,029$       548$            
Changes in Assumptions 93               -              
Change in Proportionate Share -              171              
Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments  -              1,055           

OPEB
Net difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments  -              34                
Change in Proportionate Share 16               
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 473             100              
Changes in Assumptions 526             285              

Total Deferred Inflows 2,137$       2,193$         

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities comprised the following:

 J une 30, 
2021 

 June 30, 
2020 

Services and Supplies 1,096$        1,942$        
Payroll and Related 7,718          7,904          
Accrued Interest 804             1,054          
Perkins FCC Payable 592             535             
Contract Retainage 747             329             

10,957$      11,764$      
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8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liability activity was as follows:

 Balance 
June 30, 

2020  Additions Reductions

 Balance 
J une 30, 

2021 

 Amount Due 
Within One 

Year 
Long-Term 

Portion
Long-Term Debt

Due to the State of Oregon:

Contracts  Payable 45,982$          12,026$          (13,311)$        44,697$         1,969$             $         42,728 
Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 3,365              -                       (259)                3,106              273                                 2,833 

Total Long-Term Debt 49,347            12,026            (13,570)           47,803            2,242              45,561            

Other Noncurrent Liabilities
PERS pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability 3,024              -                       (378)                2,646              347                                 2,299 
Compensated Absences 2,323              1,995              (1,730)             2,588              1,788                                800 
Faculty Banked Credits 60                   -                       -                       60                    60                                            - 
Capital Lease Payable 229                 110                  (126)                213                 123                                       90 

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 5,636              2,105              (2,234)             5,507              2,318              3,189              
Total Long-Term Liabilities 54,983$          14,131$          (15,804)$        53,310$         4,560$            48,750$          

 Balance 
June 30, 

2019  Additions Reductions

 Balance 
June 30, 

2020 

 Amount Due 
Within One 

Year 
Long-Term 

Portion
Long-Term Debt

Due to the State of Oregon:
Contracts  Payable 48,249$          12$                   (2,279)$            45,982$           2,342$               $           43,640 
Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 3,612              -                       (247)                 3,365               262                                   3,103 

Total Long-Term Debt 51,861            12                     (2,526)              49,347             2,604                46,743              

Other Noncurrent Liabilities
PERS pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability 3,344              -                       (321)                 3,023               329                   2,695                
Compensated Absences 2,157              2,048                (1,882)              2,323               1,746                577                   
Faculty Banked Credits 60                   -                       -                       60                    60                     -                       
Capital Lease Payable -                     399                   (170)                 229                  115                   114                   

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities 5,561              2,447                (2,373)              5,635               2,250                3,386                
Total Long-Term Liabilities 57,422$          2,459$              (4,899)$            54,982$           4,854$              50,129$            
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The schedule of principal and interest payments for WOU debt is as follows:

The state periodically issues bonded debt which it then loans to the university for capital construction. WOU has entered 
into contract loan agreements with the state for the principal and interest amounts due. In addition, WOU also borrows 
funds from the Oregon Department of Energy. The state may periodically issue new debt to refund previously held debt. 
Per the contract and loan agreements, when this happens the state is required to pass the savings on to the university. 

A. Contracts Payable
WOU has entered into loan agreements with the state for repayment of bonds issued by the state on behalf of WOU for 
capital construction and refunding of previously issued debt. WOU makes loan payments (principal and interest) to the 
state in accordance with the loan agreements. Loans, with effective yields ranging from 1.78 percent to 7.0 percent, are 
due serially through 2042. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the state issued bonds for refunding of previously held debt which resulted in 
a net increase in WOU’s contracts payable of $876. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the state did not issue any bonds which resulted in neither an increase or 
decrease to WOU’s contracts payable. 

B. Oregon Department of Energy Loans
WOU has entered into loan agreements with the state Department of Energy (DOE) Small-Scale Energy Loan Program 
(SELP) for energy conservation projects at WOU. WOU makes monthly loan payments (principal and interest) to the 
DOE in accordance with the loan agreements. SELP loans, with interest rates ranging from 4.33 percent to 4.64 percent, 
are due through 2031.

C. State and Local Government Rate Pool
Prior to the formation of the PERS state and local government rate pool (SLGRP), the state and community colleges were 
pooled together in the state and community college pool (SCCP), and local government employers participated in the 
Local Government Rate Pool (LGRP). These two pools combined to form the SLGRP effective January 1, 2002, at which 
time a transitional, pre-SLGRP liability was created. The pre-SLGRP liability is essentially a debt owed to the SLGRP by 
the SCCP employers. The balance of the pre-SLGRP pooled liability attributable to the state is being amortized over the 
period ending December 31, 2027. The liability is allocated by the State, based on salaries and wages, to all public uni-
versities, state proprietary funds and the government-wide reporting fund in the state's comprehensive annual financial 
report. Interest expense was paid by WOU in the amount of $219 and $246 for June 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively. 
Principal payments of $378 and $321 were applied to the liability for June 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively. ly. Principal 
payments of $321 and $279 were applied to the liability for June 30, 2020, and 2019, respectively. 

For the Year Ending June 30, 
Contracts  
Payable SELP

Total 
Payments Principal Interest

2022 3,625$            398$            4,023$            2,100$         1,923$        
2023 4,003 397 4,400 2,687 1,713
2024 4,261 398 4,659 3,050 1,609
2025 4,247 397 4,644 3,141 1,503
2026 4,267 398 4,665 3,272 1,393
2027-2031 19,222 1,781 21,003 15,748 5,255
2032-2036 12,656 -               12,656 9,836 2,820
2037-2041 8,272 -               8,272 7,552 720
2042-2046 278 -               278 276 2
Accreted Interest 142 (142)

47,803$       16,796$      
Total Future Debt Service 60,831 3,769 64,600
Less:  Interest Component
     of Future Payments (16,134) (663) (16,797)
Principal Portion of
      Future Payments 44,697$        3,106$        47,803$        
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D. Faculty Banked Credits
Per the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) between the WOU Federation of Teachers and the university effective 
July 1, 2017, tenured or tenure-track faculty who teach individually designed courses outside of their tenured or ten-
ure-track regular teaching load are eligible for credit banking compensation adjustments, subject to conditions in the 
CBA. Currently there are 20 eligible faculty members with banked credits who either may request a cash payment or 
paid faculty release time, which must be cashed out or used within the next five years. The total liability as of June 30, 
2021 and 2020, was $60.

E. Revolving Line of Credit
The university has an unused $5,000 line of credit payable from all legally available university revenues, including 
tuition, fees, charges, rents, and other income to the extent they are not restricted in their use by law. The rate is fixed 
at 2.68 percent. The line of credit matures on December 31, 2024 and may be extended for one two-year period. In the 
event of default, the financial institution may exercise all rights, powers, and remedies as allowed by law. 

9. UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION
Unrestricted net position is comprised of the following:

 J une 30,
2021 

 June 30,
2020 

University Operations 27,668$       29,048$         
Unrestricted Quasi-Endowment 2,155 1,062
Net Pension Liability
    (See Note 14) (49,387) (37,199)
Other Post-Employment Benefits  
     (OPEB) Liability (See Note 15) (1,985) (2,163)
Pension & OPEB Related Deferred
     Outflows (See Note 6) 18,552 13,224
Pension & OPEB Related Deferred
     Inflows (See Note 6) (2,137) (2,193)
State and Local Government Rate 
     Pool Liability (See Note 8) (2,646) (3,023)
Compensated Absences  Liability 
     (See Note 8) (2,588) (2,261)
Faculty Credit Banking Liability
     (See Note 8) (60) (60)

Total Unrestricted Net Position (10,428)$      (3,565)$          
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11.  OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL CLASSIFICATION
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports operating expenses by their functional 
classification. The following displays operating expenses by both the functional and natural classifications. The 
reporting of the net pension liability and OPEB asset and liabilities, as required by GASB Statement Nos. 68, 71 and 75, 
affects the reported compensation and benefit expenses of WOU.

J une 30, 2021
Compensation 
and Benefits

Services and 
Supplies

Scholarships 
and Fellowships

Depreciation and 
Amortization Other Total

Instruction 33,601$                1,714$            313$                     -$                            -$            35,628$     
Research 831                       179                 17                         1                             -              1,028         
Public Services 2,859                    555                 3                           -                              2             3,419         
Academic Support 6,881                    1,980              -                           -                              -              8,861         
Student Services 6,698                    1,129              65                         2                             23           7,917         
Auxiliary Services 8,322                    6,265              480                       2,420                      -              17,487       
Institutional Support 7,651                    676                 -                           -                              -              8,327         
Operation & Maint. of Plant 4,237                    189                 -                           -                              -              4,426         
Student Aid 15                         1                     9,234                    -                              729         9,979         
Other 663                       919                 -                           4,213                      -              5,795         

Total 71,758$              13,607$        10,112$              6,636$                  754$      102,867$  

June 30, 2020
Compensation 
and Benefits

Services and 
Supplies

Scholarships and 
Fellowships

Depreciation and 
Amortization Other Total

Instruction 37,246$                3,591$            343$                     -$                            5$           41,185$       
Research 555                       66                   -                           1                             2             624              
Public Services 1,009                    197                 -                           -                              11           1,217           
Academic Support 8,177                    2,081              -                           -                              -              10,258         
Student Services 7,128                    1,108              72                         8                             24           8,340           
Auxiliary Services 11,581                  9,009              186                       2,423                      -              23,199         
Institutional Support 7,695                    278                 -                           -                              -              7,973           
Operation & Maint. Of Plant 5,470                    (24)                 -                           -                              -              5,446           
Student Aid -                            2                     7,973                    -                              1,022      8,997           
Other 1,602                    1,109              -                           4,032                      -              6,743           

Total 80,463$                17,417$          8,574$                  6,464$                    1,064$    113,982$     

10.  INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Investment Activity details are as follows:

J une 30, 
2021

 June 30, 
2020 

Investment Earnings 486$         1,436$        

Net Appreciation (Depreciation) of
     Investments 46              (166)
Royalties  and Technology Transfer Income 5                16
Interest Income 20              37
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investment 248           508

Total Investment Activity 805$         1,831$        
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12.  GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS
WOU receives support from the state in the form of general fund and lottery appropriations. These appropriations 
are in support of the operations of the university and debt service of SELP loans. Appropriations for SELP debt 
service are based on the loan agreements between the university and the Oregon Department of Energy. Government 
appropriations comprised the following: J une 30,

2021
June 30,

2020

General Fund - Operations 28,608$    27,134$    
Lottery Funding 1,373        1,068        

Government Appropriations 29,981      28,202      
General Fund - SELP Debt Service 382           382           

Total State Appropriations 30,363$    28,584$    

13.  EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
Western Oregon University offers various retirement plans to qualified employees as described below.

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (PERS)
Organization
The university participates with other state agencies in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (System), which 
is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan. Plan assets may be used to pay the benefits of the employees 
of any employer that provides pensions through the plan. PERS is administered in accordance with Oregon Revised 
Statutes (ORS) Chapter 238, Chapter 238A, and Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The Oregon Legislature has 
delegated authority to the Public Employees Retirement Board (PERS Board) to administer and manage the System.
Plan Membership
The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted Chapter 654, Section 3, Oregon Laws 1995, which has been codified into ORS 
238.435. This legislation created a second tier of benefits for those who established membership on or after January 1, 
1996. Membership prior to January 1, 1996 are Tier One members. The second tier does not have the Tier One assumed 
earnings rate guarantee and has a higher normal retirement age of 60, compared to 58 for Tier One. Both Tier One and 
Tier Two are defined benefit plans. 
The 2003 Legislature enacted House Bill (HB) 2020, codified as ORS 238A, which created the Oregon Public Service 
Retirement Plan (OPSRP). OPSRP consists of the Pension Program defined benefit (DB) program and the Individual 
Account Program (IAP). The IAP is a defined contribution plan. Membership includes public employees hired on or 
after August 29, 2003.
Beginning January 1, 2004, PERS active Tier One and Tier Two members became members of IAP of OPSRP. PERS 
members retain their existing Defined Benefit Plan accounts, but member contributions are now deposited into the 
member’s IAP account, not into the member’s Defined Benefit Plan account. Accounts are credited with earnings and 
losses, net of administrative expenses. OPSRP is part of PERS and is administered by the PERS Board.
Pension Plan Report
The PERS defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans are reported as pension trust funds in the fiduciary 
funds combining statements and as part of the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust in the State's Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. PERS issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes an audit opinion that 
may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, Fiscal Services Division, PO Box 23700, Tigard, 
OR 97281-3700. The report may also be accessed online at: www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-
Information.aspx
Basis of Accounting
Contributions for employers are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions to PERS are 
calculated based on creditable compensation for active members reported by employers. Employer contributions are 
accrued when due pursuant to legal requirements. These are amounts normally included in the employer statements cut 
off as of the fifth of the following month.
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Proportionate Share Allocation Methodology
The basis for the employer’s proportion is actuarially determined by comparing the employer’s projected long-term 
contribution effort to the Plan with the total projected long-term contribution effort of all employers. The contribution 
rate for every employer has at least two major components; Normal Cost Rate and Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) 
Rate.
Pension Plan Liability
The components of the Plan’s collective net pension liability as of the measurement dates of June 30, 2020, and 2019, are 
as follows (dollars in millions)

J une 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

Total Pension Liability 90,143$   87,501$    
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 68,319     70,204     
Plan Net Pension Liability 21,823$   17,298$    

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date
The university is not aware of any changes to benefit terms subsequent to the June 30, 2020, measurement date.

OREGON PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS) PENSION (CHAPTER 238) PROGRAM
Pension Benefits
The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. There are 13 retirement benefit options a retiring employee 
may select from. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years 
of service and final average salary. A percentage (1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the number 
of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for 
members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefit results. 
Monthly payments must be a minimum of $200 per month or the member will receive a lump-sum payment of the 
actuarial equivalence of benefits to which he or she is entitled. 
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance if 
he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing 
employment with a participating employer. General Service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Tier One general 
service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Tier Two 
members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new 
members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance 
(accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer 
funds equal to the account balance provided one or more of the following conditions are met:

• The member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death.
• The member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment.
• The member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job.
• The member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

Disability Benefits
A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than duty-connected cause 
may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member 
for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty 
disability, service time is computed to age 58 when determining the monthly benefit.
Benefit Changes After Retirement
Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account after retiring and may 
experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of equity investments.
Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs). The COLA is 
capped at 2.0 percent.
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OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP DB) PENSION PROGRAM 
Pension Benefits
This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the 
following formula for members who attain normal retirement age: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of 
service and the final average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years 
of retirement credit.
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 
600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and if the pen-
sion program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.
Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required to be treated in 
the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the 
deceased member.
Disability Benefits
A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes disabled or a member 
who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary 
determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.
Benefit Changes After Retirement
Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through COLAs. The cap on the COLA varies based on 
1.25 percent on the first $60 of annual benefit and 0.15 percent on annual benefits above $60.

OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP IAP) PENSION PROGRAM 
Benefit Terms
The IAP is an individual account-based program under the PERS tax-qualified governmental plan as defined under ORS 
238A.400. An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover 
account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes 
vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar 
years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member 
becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies. The accounts fall under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). 
Upon retirement, a member of the IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover account, and 
vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an antici-
pated life span option. Installment amounts vary with market returns as the account remains invested while in distribu-
tion. When chosen, the distribution option must result in a $200 minimum distribution amount, or the frequency of the 
installments will be adjusted to reach that minimum.
Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account balance, rollover 
account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the install-
ment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum 
payment.
PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
PERS and OPSRP employee contribution requirements are established by IRS 238.200 and ORS 238A.330, respectively, 
and are credited to an employee’s account in the Individual Account Program and may be amended by an act of the 
Oregon Legislature. PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. 
These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay 
benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit 
Plans.
Employer contributions rates for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, were based on the December 31, 2017, 
actuarial valuation. The employer contribution rates for the PERS and OPSRP are as follows:

2021 2020

PERS Tiers One/Two 21.21% 21.21%
OPSRP 14.75% 14.75%
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NET PENSION LIABILITY
At June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of $49,387 for its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liabil-
ity. The net pension liability as of June 30, 2021, was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. At June 30, 2020, 
the university reported a liability of $37,199 for its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability. The net pension 
liability as of June 30, 2020, was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017. The PERS system does not provide 
WOU an audited proportionate share as a separate employer; the university is a proportionate share of PERS employer 
state agencies which includes all state agencies. The State Department of Administrative Services calculated WOU’s pro-
portional share of all state agencies internally based on actual contributions by WOU as compared to the total for em-
ployer state agencies. The State Audits Division performed a review of this internal calculation. At June 30, 2021, WOU’s 
proportion was 0.23 percent of the statewide pension plan, and 0.80 percent of employer state agencies. At June 30, 2020, 
WOU’s proportion was 0.22 percent of the statewide pension plan, and 0.75 percent of employer state agencies. At June 
30, 2019, WOU’s proportion was 0.22 percent of the statewide pension plan, and 0.83 percent of employer state agencies.
For the years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, WOU recorded total pension expense of $8,218 and $7,527, respectively, due 
to the changes in net pension liability, deferred inflows and deferred outflows. 
Deferred Items
Deferred items are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. 
For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, and 2020, deferred items include:

• Difference between expected and actual experience
• Changes in assumptions
• Net difference between projected and actual pension plan investment earnings 
• Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement date
• Difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion are 
amortized over the average remaining service lives of all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the 
beginning of the respective measurement period. Employers are required to recognize pension expense based on the bal-
ance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The average remaining service lives deter-
mined as of the beginning of each measurement period are as follows:

•  Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 – 5.3 years
•  Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 – 5.2 years
•  Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 – 5.2 years
•  Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 – 5.3 years
•  Measurement period ended June 30, 2016 – 5.3 years

The difference between projected and actual pension plan investment earnings attributable to each measurement period 
is amortized over a closed five-year period.
One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total pension expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020.
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At June 30, 2021, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources
Differences between expected and 
     actual experience 2,174$            -$                 
Changes of assumptions 2,651              93                
Net difference between projected and 
     actual earnings on pension plan 
     investments  5,807              -                   
Differences between System's  
     contributions and proportionate 
     share of contributions 1,563              909             
Change in Proportionate Share 26                    120             

Total 12,221$         1,122$        
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources before Contributions 
     Subsequent to the Measurement 
     Date (MD) 11,099$         

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 3,993              

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources after Contributions 
     Subsequent to the MD 15,092$         

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $3,993 are related to pensions resulting from WOU 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the year ended June 30, 2022.
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At June 30, 2020, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and 
     actual experience 2,051$             -$                 
Changes of assumptions 5,047               -                   
Net difference between projected and 
     actual earnings on pension plan 
     investments  -                       1,055           
Differences between System's  
     contributions and proportionate 
     share of contributions 39                    548              
Change in Proportionate Share 1,326               171              

Total 8,463$             1,774$         
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources before Contributions 
     Subsequent to the Measurement 
     Date (MD) 6,689$             

Contributions Subsequent to the MD 4,432               

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources after Contributions 
     Subsequent to the MD 11,121$           

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $4,432 are related to pensions resulting from WOU 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.

Year Ended June 30:
2022 2,591$            
2023 3,274
2024 3,070
2025 2,107
2026 57

11,099$        

Deferred Outflow/ (Inflow) 
of Resources
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual re-
sults are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed 
as of December 31 of even numbered years.

The following methods and assumptions were used in the development of the total pension liability:

As of: J une 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Valuation Date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Experience Study Report 2018, published July 2019 2016, published July 2017
Actuarial Cost Method

Inflation Rate
Long-Term Expected Rate 
of Return

Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments 
(COLA)

Pub-2010 Healthy Retriee, sex distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale, with job category 
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation.

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation.

Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale, with job category 
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation.

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation.

Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale, with job category 
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation.

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale

Disabled retirees:  

Actuarial Methods:

Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:

Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with 
Moro  decision; blend based on service

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

Active members:

2.50 percent

3.50 percent 

7.20 percent

7.20 percent
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Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2021, and 2020, was 7.20 percent. The projec-
tion of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of 
the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes 
in the discount rate. The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.20 percent as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, as well as what the university’s proportionate share 
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the current rate:

J une 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
1% Decrease

6.20%
73,336$                59,572$                

Current Discount Rate
7.20% 49,387                  37,199                  

1% Increase
8.20%

29,305                  18,477                  

Depletion Date Projection
GASB Statement No. 68 generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total Pension 
Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The 
long-term expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the Plan’s 
Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and administrative 
expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) municipal bond rate must be used for periods where the 
Fiduciary Net Position is not projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. Determining the 
discount rate under GASB Statement No. 68 will often require that the actuary perform complex projections of 
future benefit payments and pension plan investments. GASB Statement No. 68 (paragraph 67) does allow for 
alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contem-
plate a specific method for making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment. 
The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for Oregon PERS: 

•  Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which 
is articulated in the actuarial valuation report. 

•  The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC each 
year will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the amortization period if future experience 
follows assumption. 

•  GASB Statement No. 68 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn 
the assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and 
assumptions, which means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience, which might 
impact the plan’s funded position. 

Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date pro-
jections outlined in GASB Statement No. 68 would clearly indicate that the Fiduciary Net Position is always 
projected to be sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.
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Assumed Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2021

Asset Class/ S trategy
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 %
Public Equity 32.50 42.50 37.50
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50
Alternatives Portfolio 0.00 12.50 12.50
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 3.00 0.00
Total 100 %

Low Range High Range OIC Target

Asset Class/ S trategy
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 %
Public Equity 27.50 37.50 32.50
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50
Alternative Investments 7.50 17.50 15.00
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 3.00 0.00
Risk Parity 0.00 2.50 2.50
Total 100 %

Low Range High Range OIC Target

Assumed Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2020

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019, the 
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and 
the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based on a consistent set of 
underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on 
historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The table on the following 
page shows a summary of long-term expected rate of return by asset class. For more information on the Plan’s portfolio, 
assumed asset allocation, and the long-term expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated using both 
arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS’ audited financial statements at: www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/
Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx
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The following table shows the long-term expected rate of return by asset class as of June 30, 2021:

Asset Class Target
Compound 

Annual Return 
(Geometric)

Core Fixed Income   9.60%  4.07%  
Short-Term Bonds 9.60 3.68
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.60 5.19
High Yield Bonds 1.20 5.74
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 16.17 6.30
Small Cap US Equities 1.35 6.68
Micro Cap US Equities 1.35 6.79
Developed Foreign Equities 13.48 6.91
Emerging Market Equities 4.24 7.69
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.93 7.25
Private Equity 17.50 8.33
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.55
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.69
Hedge Fund of Funds - 
Diversified 1.50 4.06

Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.38 5.59
Timber 1.13 5.61
Farmland 1.13 6.12
Infrastructure 2.25 6.67
Commodities 1.13 3.79

Assumed Inflation – Mean 2.50%
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The following table shows the long-term expected rate of return by asset class as of June 30, 2020:

Asset Class Target Compound 
Annual Return

Core Fixed Income 8.00% 3.49%
Short-Term Bonds 8.00 3.38
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.00 5.09
High Yield Bonds 1.00 6.45
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 15.75 6.30
Small Cap US Equities 1.31 6.69
Micro Cap US Equities 1.31 6.80
Developed Foreign Equities 13.13 6.71
Emerging Market Equities 4.13 7.45
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.88 7.01
Private Equity 17.50 7.82
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.51
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.37
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 2.50 4.09
Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.63 5.86
Timber 1.88 5.62
Farmland 1.88 6.15
Infrastructure 3.75 6.60
Commodities 1.88 3.84

Assumed Inflation – Mean 2.50%

BOND DEBT
The retirement bond debt service assessment was authorized by the Oregon Legislature in 2003 to sell general obligation 
bonds in the amount of $2 billion to pay a PERS unfunded actuarial liability. This action reduced the PERS contribution 
rate for PERS covered employers in the state actuarial pool in November 2003.
The Oregon Department of Administrative Services coordinates the debt service assessments to PERS employers to cover 
the bond debt service payments. PERS employers are assessed a percentage of PERS-subject payroll to fund the pay-
ments. The assessment rate is adjusted periodically over the life of the twenty-four-year debt repayment schedule.
The payroll assessment for the pension obligation bond began in May 2004. The assessment rate for fiscal year 2021 was 
5.6 percent. The assessment rate for fiscal year 2020 was 6.2 percent through October 31, 2019. The 2020 rate was reduced 
to 5.6 percent effective November 1, 2019. Payroll assessments for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, were 
$1,571 and $1,702, respectively.

B. OTHER RETIREMENT PLANS

OPTIONAL RETIREMENT PLAN 
The 1995, Oregon Legislature enacted legislation that authorized WOU to offer a defined contribution retirement plan as 
an alternative to PERS. A Retirement Plan Committee was appointed to administer the Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) 
and named trustees to manage plan assets placed with mutual funds and insurance companies. Beginning April 1, 1996, 
the ORP was made available to university academic and administrative faculty. Employees choosing the ORP may invest 
the employee and employer contributions in one of two investment companies, either Fidelity or the Teacher’s Insurance 
and Annuity Association (TIAA).
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The ORP consists of four tiers. Membership under ORP Tier One and Tier Two is determined using the same date of 
entry criteria as PERS. The third tier is determined by the date of entry applicable to the OPSRP. Employees hired on or 
after July 1, 2014, who elected the ORP are Tier Four members. The first contributions for Tier Four were payable January 
2015 after six-months of qualifying service. Tier Four is a departure from the other three tiers. The employee is entitled 
to an employer contribution plus a “match” contribution based on the employee’s participation in the voluntary 403(b) 
investment plan. The employer contribution is fixed at 8 percent by plan rules and is unaffected by PERS rates, unlike 
the other tiers. The employer provides an ORP match contribution equal to 403(b) deferrals up to a 4 percent maximum. 
Under the ORP Tiers One, Two and Three, the employee’s contribution rate is 6 percent and is paid by the employer. 
The employer contribution rates for the ORP are as follows:

2021 2020

Tiers One/Two 27.20% 27.20%
Tier Three 9.85% 9.85%
Tier Four 8.00% 8.00%

OREGON PUBLIC UNIVERSITIES 401(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Eligible ranked faculty participate in the TIAA retirement program, a defined contribution plan, on all salary in 
excess of forty-eight hundred dollars per calendar year. Employee and employer contributions are directed to PERS on 
the first forty-eight hundred dollars. The contribution to TIAA annuities is supplemental to PERS. To participate in 
this retirement option, employees must have been hired on or before September 9, 1995. This plan was closed to new 
enrollment at the time the ORP started in 1996. The legacy plan, Oregon University System 401(a) Defined Contribution 
Plan, document was amended and restated July 1, 2015, and the plan sponsor is now the Board of Trustees for the 
University of Oregon.

SUMMARY OF OTHER PENSION PAYMENTS
WOU’s total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2021, was $43,866 of which $11,495 was subject to defined contribution 
retirement plan contributions. The following schedule lists payments made by WOU for the fiscal year:

 Employer 
Contribution 

As a %  of 
Covered 
Payroll

 Employee 
Contribution 

As a %  of 
Covered 
Payroll

ORP 1,686$          14.67% 822$             7.15%
TIAA 6                   0.05% 6                   0.05%

Total 1,692$          14.72% 828$             7.20%

J une 30, 2021

Of the employee share, WOU paid $779 of the ORP and $8 of the TIAA employee contribution amounts on behalf of 
their employees during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
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14. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS
The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Board contracts for health insurance coverage on behalf of eligible 
PERS members. Eligible retirees pay their own age-adjusted premiums. To help retirees defray the cost of these 
premiums, PERS also administers two separate defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans: the 
Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) and the Retiree Health Insurance Premium Account (RHIPA). Only Tier 
One and Tier Two PERS members are eligible to participate in the RHIA and RHIPA plans. (Refer to Note 13 for details 
concerning Tier One and Tier Two membership in PERS.)
The RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan in which the university participates. Estab-
lished under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420, the plan provides a payment of up to $60 toward the monthly cost of 
health insurance for eligible PERS members. To be eligible to receive the RHIA subsidy, the member must (1) have eight 
years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member 
had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2) receive both Medicare parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in 
a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive 
the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or (2) 
was insured at the time the member died and the member retired before May 1, 1991. The Legislature has sole authority 
to amend the benefit provisions and employer obligations for the RHIA plan. 
Established under ORS 238.415, the RHIPA is considered a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan for financial 
reporting purposes. The plan provides payment of the average difference between the health insurance premiums paid 
by retired state employees under contracts entered into by the PERS Board and health insurance premiums paid by state 
employees who are not retired. PERS members are qualified to receive the RHIPA subsidy if they have eight or more 
years of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability pension calculated as if they had eight 
or more years of qualifying service, but are not eligible for federal Medicare coverage. A surviving spouse or dependent 
of a deceased retired state employee is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or 
allowance from PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the member retired on or after September 29, 
1991. The Legislature has sole authority to amend the benefit provisions and employer obligations of the RHIPA plan. 
Both RHIA and RHIPA are closed to employees hired on or after August 29, 2003, who had not established PERS mem-
bership prior to that date.

OPEB PLANS REPORT
The PERS RHIA and RHIPA defined benefit OPEB plans are reported separately under Other Employee Benefit Trust 
Funds in the fiduciary funds combining statements and as part of the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust in the 
state’s Comprehensive Annual financial Report. PERS issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes 
audited financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the Pub-
lic Employees Retirement System, Fiscal Services Division, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700. The report may also be 
accessed online at: www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The financial statements for the PERS OPEB plans are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are 
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Benefits are recognized in the month they are earned and 
withdrawals are recognized in the month they are due and payable. Plan investments are reported at fair value.

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY
The basis for the employer’s proportion is determined by comparing the employer’s actual, legally required contributions 
made during the fiscal year to the Plan with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers.
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OPEB PLAN (ASSET)/LIABILITY
The components of the collective Net OPEB liability (asset) for the OPEB plans as of the measurement dates of June 30, 
2020, and 2019, are as follows (in millions):

Net OPEB - RHIA (Asset)
J une 30, 

2020
June 30, 

2019
Total OPEB - RHIA Liability 406.9$     435.6$   
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 610.7 628.9
Plan Net OPEB - RHIA (Asset) (203.8)$   (193.3)$  

Net OPEB - RHIPA L iability
J une 30, 

2020
June 30, 

2019
Total OPEB - RHIPA Liability 64.3$      72.0$     
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 54.3 46.7
Plan Net OPEB - RHIA Liability 10.0$      25.3$     

CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO THE MEASUREMENT DATE
The university is not aware of any changes to benefit terms subsequent to the June 30, 2020, measurement date.

CONTRIBUTIONS
Both of the OPEB plans administered by PERS are funded through actuarially determined employer contributions. 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, the university contributed 0.06 and 0.07 percent, respectively, of 
PERS-covered payroll for Tier One and Tier Two plan members to fund the normal cost portion of RHIA benefits. 
The required employer contributions were approximately $5 and $142 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. The actual contribution equaled the annual required contribution for the fiscal year. 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, the university contributed 0.12 and 0.11 percent, respectively, of 
PERS-covered payroll for Tier One and Tier Two plan members to fund the normal cost portion of RHIPA benefits. 
In addition, the university contributed 0.27 percent of all PERS-covered payroll to amortize the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities amortized over 20 years. The 
required employer contributions were approximately $86 and $130 for the years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, 
respectively. The actual contribution equaled the annual required contribution for the fiscal year. 

NET OPEB ASSET – PERS RHIA
At June 30, 2021, the university reported an asset of $4,125 for its proportionate share of the PERS RHIA net OPEB 
asset. The net OPEB asset as of June 30, 2021, was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB asset used to 
calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. At June 30, 2020, the 
university reported an asset of $526 for its proportionate share of the PERS RHIA net OPEB asset. The net OPEB asset 
as of June 30, 2020, was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB asset used to calculate the net OPEB asset 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017. The PERS system does not provide WOU an audited 
proportionate share as a separate employer; the university is allocated a proportionate share of PERS employer state 
agencies. The State Department of Administrative Services (DAS) calculated WOU’s proportionate share of all state 
agencies internally based on actual contributions by WOU as compared to the total for employer state agencies. The 
Oregon Audits Division reviewed this internal calculation. At June 30, 2021, WOU’s proportion was 2.02 percent of the 
statewide OPEB plan and 12.28 percent of employer state agencies. At June 30, 2020, WOU’s proportion was 0.27 percent 
of the statewide OPEB plan and 0.90 percent of employer state agencies. At June 30, 2019, WOU’s proportion was 0.26 
percent of the statewide OPEB plan and 0.87 percent of employer state agencies.
For the years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, WOU recorded total OPEB expense of ($5,081) and ($80), respectively, due 
to changes in the net PERS RHIA OPEB asset, deferred outflows and deferred inflows and amortization of previously 
deferred amounts.
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NET OPEB LIABILITY – PERS RHIPA
At June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of $114 for its proportionate share of the PERS RHIPA net OPEB 
liability. The net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021, was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability 
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. At June 30, 
2020, the university reported a liability of $229 for its proportionate share of the PERS RHIPA net OPEB liability. The 
net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020, was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate 
the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017. The PERS system does not 
provide WOU an audited proportionate share as a separate employer; the university is allocated a proportionate share 
of PERS employer state agencies. DAS calculated WOU’s proportionate share of all state agencies internally based on 
actual contributions by WOU as compared to the total for employer state agencies. The Oregon Audits Division reviewed 
this internal calculation. At June 30, 2021, and 2020, WOU’s proportion was 1.15 and 0.87 percent, respectively, of the 
statewide OPEB plan.
For the years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, WOU recorded total OPEB expense of $10 and $26, respectively, due to 
changes in the net PERS RHIPA OPEB liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows and amortization of previously 
deferred amounts.

DEFERRED ITEMS - RHIA
Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated 
to employers based on their proportionate share. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, deferred 
items included:

• Difference between expected and actual experience
• Difference due to changes in assumptions
• Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement date
• Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumption, and changes in employer proportion are 
amortized over the average remaining service lives of all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the 
beginning of the respective measurement period. Employers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the 
balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The average remaining service lives 
determined as of the beginning of each measurement period are as follows:

• Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 – 2.9 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 – 3.1 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 – 3.3 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 – 3.7 years

The difference between projected and actual OPEB plan investment earnings attributable to each measurement period is 
amortized over a closed five-year period. 
One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020. 
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At June 30, 2021, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIA OPEB 
from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences Between Expected and 
      Actual Experience -$                       422$                  
Change in Assumptions -                         219                    
Net Difference Between Projected
     and Actual Earnings on OPEB 
     Plan Investments 459                    -                         
Change in Proportionate Share 1,715                 16                      

Total 2,174$               657$                  
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources before Contributions 
     Subsequent to the Measurement 
     Date (MD) 1,517$               
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 5                        

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources after Contributions 
     Subsequent to the MD 1,522$               

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $5 are related to contributions subsequent to the measure-
ment date and will be recognized as an increase of the net OPEB asset in the year ended June 30, 2022. 
At June 30, 2020, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIA OPEB 
from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Difference Between Expected and 
     Actual Experience -$                       1$                      
Change in Assumptions -                         69                      
Net Difference Between Projected
     and Actual Earnings on OPEB 
     Plan Investments -                         32                      
Change in Proportionate Share 2                        -                         

Total 2$                      102$                  
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources before Contributions 
     Subsequent to the Measurement 
     Date (MD) (100)$                 
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 144                    

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources after Contributions 
     Subsequent to the MD 44$                    
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Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $144 are related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date and are recognized as an increase of the net OPEB asset in the year ended June 30, 2021.
As of June 30, 2021, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to RHIA OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30:
2022 478$             
2023 724
2024 170
2025 145

1,517$          

Deferred Outflow/ (Inflow) of 
Resources

DEFERRED ITEMS - RHIPA
Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources are calculated at the system-wide level and are allocated 
to employers based on their proportionate share. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, deferred items 
included:

• Difference due to changes in assumptions
• Changes between expected and actual experience 
• Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement date
• Difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions
• Net difference between projected and actual OPEB plan investment earnings

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumption, and change in employer proportion are amor-
tized over the average remaining service lives of all plan participants, including retirees, determined as of the beginning of the 
respective measurement period. Employers are required to recognize OPEB expense based on the balance of the closed period 
“layers” attributable to each measurement period.
The average remaining service lives determined as of the beginning of each measurement period are as follows:

• Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 – 6.4 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 – 6.7 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 – 6.9 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 – 7.2 years 

The difference between projected and actual OPEB plan investment earnings attributable to each measurement period is 
amortized over a closed five-year period. 
One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020.
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At June 30, 2021, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIPA 
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Difference Between Expected and 
     Actual Experience -$                       43$                    
Change in Assumptions 3                        77                      
Net Difference Between Projected
     and Actual Earnings on OPEB 
     Plan Investments 26                      -                         

Total 29$                    120$                  
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources before Contributions 
     Subsequent to the Measurement 
     Date (MD) (91)$                   
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 86
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources after Contributions 
     Subsequent to the MD (5)$                     

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $86 are related to contributions subsequent to the mea-
surement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.
At June 30, 2020, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIPA 
OPEB from the following sources (in thousands):

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Difference Between Expected and 
     Actual Experience -$                       21$                    
Change in Assumptions 3                        -                         
Net Difference Between Projected
     and Actual Earnings on OPEB 
     Plan Investments -                         1                        

Total 3$                      22$                    
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources before Contributions 
     Subsequent to the Measurement 
     Date (MD) (19)$                   
Contributions Subsequent to the MD 130                    
Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources after Contributions 
     Subsequent to the MD 111$                  

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $130 are related to contributions subsequent to the measure-
ment date and are recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.
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As of June 30, 2021, other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to RHIPA OPEB will be recognized 
in OPEB expense as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30:
2022 (18)$              
2023 (16)
2024 (16)
2025 (16)
2026 (18)
2027 (7)

(91)$              

Deferred Outflow/ (Inflow) of 
Resources

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value 
of projected benefits and assumptions about the probability of events far 
into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continu-
al revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as 
of December 31 of even numbered years. 
The following key methods and assumptions were used to measure the 
total RHIA OPEB liability:

J une 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Valuation Date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Experience Study Report 2018, published July 2019 2016, published July 2017

Actuarial Cost Method
Inflation Rate
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases

Retiree Healthcare Participation Healthy retirees : 32%; Disabled 
retirees : 20%

Healthy retirees : 35%; Disabled 
retirees : 20%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

Pub-2010 Healthy  Retiree, sex distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social Security  
Data Scale, with job category  
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation

RP-2014 Healthy  annuitant, sex-
distinct, generational Unisex, Social 
Security  Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation.

Pub-2010 Employ ee, sex distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social Security  
Data Scale, with job category  
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation

RP-2014 Healthy  annuitant, sex-
distinct, generational Unisex, Social 
Security  Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation.

Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social Security  
Data Scale, with job category  
adjustments and set-backs as described 
in the valuation

RP-2014 Disabled retirees, sex-distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social Security  
Data Scale

Not applicable

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

Active members:

Disabled retirees: 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions:
Entry Age Normal

2.50 percent

3.50 percent 

7.20 percent
7.20 percent
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The following key methods and assumptions were used to measure the total RHIPA OPEB liability:

J une 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Valuation Date December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Experience Study Report 2018, published July 2019 2016, published July 2017

Actuarial Cost Method
Inflation Rate
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases

Retiree Healthcare Participation

8-14 Years of Service: 10%
15-19 Years of Servie: 15%

20-24 Years of Service: 19%
25-29 Years of Service: 26%
30+ Years of Service: 34%

8-14 Years of Service: 10%
15-19 Years of Servie: 18%

20-24 Years of Service: 23%
25-29 Years of Service: 29%
30+ Years of Service: 38%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

Applied at beginning of plan year, 
starting with 7.1% for 2019, 
decreasing to 5.0% for 2022, 
increasing to 5.9% for 2031, and 
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 
4.1% for 2094 and beyond.

Applied at beginning of plan year, 
starting with 7.5% for 2017, decreasing 
to 5.2% for 2024, increasing to 6.2% 
for 2029, and decreasing to an ultimate 
rate of 4.2% for 2093 and beyond.

Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex 
distinct, generational with Unisex, 
Social Security Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments  and set-backs 
as  described in the valuation

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-
distinct, gnerational with Unisex, 
Social Security Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments  and setpbacks as  
described in the valuation

Pub-2010 Employee, sex-distinct, 
generational with Unisex, Social 
Security Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments  and set-backs 
as  described in the valuation

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-
distinct, generational with Unisex, 
Social Security Data Scale, with collar 
adjustments  and setpbacks as  
described in the valuation

Pub-2010 Disabled Retriee, sex 
distinct, generational with Unisex, 
Social Security Data Scale, with job 
category adjustments  and set-backs 
as  described in the valuation

RP-2014 Healthy annuitant, sex-
distinct, gnerational with Unisex, 
Social Security Data Scale

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

Active members:

Disabled retirees: 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions:
Entry Age Normal

2.50 percent

3.50 percent 

7.20 percent
7.20 percent

DISCOUNT RATE 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability/(asset) at June 30, 2021, and 2020, was 7.20 percent. The pro-
jection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from contributing employers are 
made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plans’ fidu-
ciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the OPEB Plans was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/
(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 percent as of June 30, 2021, and 2020, as well as what the net OPEB 
liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher than 
the current rate:

Discount Rate J une 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

J une 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

1% Decrease
6.20% ($3,331) ($408) $160 $262

Current Discount Rate
7.20% (4,125)   (526)      114      229      

1% Increase
8.20% (4,805)   (627)      71        182      

RHIA RHIPA

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/
(asset) calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates, as well as what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if 
it were calculated using healthcare trend rates that are one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than 
the current rates:

Healthcare Cost Rate
J une 30, 

2021
June 30, 

2020
J une 30, 

2021
June 30, 

2020
1% Decrease (4,125)$     (526)$        80$           166$         

Current Trend Rate (4,125) (526) 114 229
1% Increase (4,125) (526) 157 282

RHIA RHIPA

ASSUMED ASSET ALLOCATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
Asset Class/ S trategy
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 %
Public Equity 27.50 37.50 32.50
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50
Alternative Investments 7.50 17.50 15.00
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 3.00 0.00
Risk Parity 0.00 2.50 2.50
Total 100 %

Low Range High Range OIC Target

ASSUMED ASSET ALLOCATION AS OF JUNE 30, 2020
Asset Class/ S trategy
Debt Securities 15.00 % 25.00 % 20.00 %
Public Equity 32.50 42.50 37.50
Private Equity 14.00 21.00 17.50
Real Estate 9.50 15.50 12.50
Alternatives Portfolio 0.00 12.50 12.50
Opportunity Portfolio 0.00 3.00 0.00
Total 100 %

Low Range High Range OIC Target
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LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the 
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the 
OIC investment advisors. Each asset assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes ad-
justment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a 
forward-looking capital market economic model. The table below shows a summary of long-term expected rate of return 
by asset class. For more information on the Plan’s portfolio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-term expected rate 
of return for each major asset class, calculated using both arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS’ audited financial 
statements at: www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx

LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

Asset Class Target
Compound 

Annual Return 
(Geometric)

Core Fixed Income   9.60%  4.07%  
Short-Term Bonds 9.60 3.68
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.60 5.19
High Yield Bonds 1.20 5.74
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 16.17 6.30
Small Cap US Equities 1.35 6.68
Micro Cap US Equities 1.35 6.79
Developed Foreign Equities 13.48 6.91
Emerging Market Equities 4.24 7.69
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.93 7.25
Private Equity 17.50 8.33
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.55
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.69
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 1.50 4.06
Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.38 5.59
Timber 1.13 5.61
Farmland 1.13 6.12
Infrastructure 2.25 6.67
Commodities 1.13 3.79

Assumed Inflation – Mean 2.50%
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LONG-TERM EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

DEPLETION DATE PROJECTION
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, 
generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total OPEB Liability (the Actuarial Accrued 
Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return on plan 
investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market 
value of assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa 
or higher) municipal bond rate must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position is not projected to cover 
benefit payments and administrative expenses. Determining the discount rate under GASB Statement No. 75 will often 
require that the actuary perform complex projections of future benefit payments and asset values. GASB Statement 
No. 75 (paragraph 39) does allow for alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be 
made. GASB does not contemplate a specific method for making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to 
professional judgment. 
The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for Oregon PERS: 

• Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an actuarially determined contribution (ADC), which is 
articulated in the actuarial valuation report. 

• The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC each year will 
bring the plan to a 100 percent funded position by the end of the amortization period if future experience follows 
assumption. 

• GASB Statement No. 75 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the 
assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, 
which means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience that might impact the plan’s funded 
position. 
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Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections 
outlined in GASB Statement No. 75 would clearly indicate that the fiduciary net position is always projected to be 
sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFIT BOARD PLAN (PEBB)
WOU participates in a defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the Public Employees Benefit 
Board (PEBB). This plan offers healthcare assistance to eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries. Chapter 243 
of the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) gives PEBB the authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the 
PEBB Plan. The PEBB Plan is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan for financial reporting 
purposes and is not administered through a trust. There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria 
in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 for the purpose of paying benefits. PEBB does not issue a separate, publicly 
available financial report.
The PEBB Plan allows qualifying retired employees to continue their “active” health insurance coverage on a self-
pay basis until they are eligible for Medicare. Participating retirees pay their own monthly premiums. However, 
the premium amount is based on a blended rate that is determined b y pooling the qualifying retirees with active 
employees, thus, creating an “implicit rate subsidy.”

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY
The basis for the employer’s proportion is determined by comparing the employer’s actual contributions made during 
the fiscal year with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers.

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
At June 30, 2021, the university reported a liability of $1,871 for its proportionate share of the total PEBB OPEB 
liability. The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021, was measured as of June 30, 2021, and was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. At June 30, 2020, the university reported a liability of $1,933 for its proportionate 
share of the total PEBB OPEB liability. The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was measured as of June 30, 
2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. PEBB does not provide WOU an audited 
proportionate share as a separate employer; the university is allocated a proportionate share of PEBB employer state 
agencies. DAS calculated WOU’s proportionate share of all state agencies internally based on actual contributions 
by WOU as compared to the total for employer state agencies. The Oregon Audits Division reviewed this internal 
calculation. At June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, WOU’s proportion was 1.24, 1.31, and 1.27 percent, respectively, of the 
statewide OPEB plan.
For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, WOU recorded total OPEB expense of $113 and $250, respectively, due to 
changes in the total OPEB liability, deferred inflows and amortization of previously deferred amounts.

DEFERRED ITEMS
Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources are calculated at the system-wide level and are allo-
cated to employers based on their proportionate share. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, 
deferred items included:

• Difference due to changes in assumptions
• Changes between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumption and changes in proportion are amortized over the closed period equal to the average expected 
remaining service lives of all covered active and inactive participants. Employers are required to recognize OPEB 
expense based on the balance of the closed period “layers” attributable to each measurement period. The weighted 
average expected remaining service lives, assuming zero years for all retirees, determined as of the beginning of each 
measurement period are as follows:

• Measurement period ended June 30, 2020 – 8.6 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2019 – 8.6 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2018 – 8.2 years
• Measurement period ended June 30, 2017 – 8.2 years
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One year of amortization is recognized in the university’s total OPEB expense for fiscal years 2021 and 2020.
At June 30, 2021, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PEBB OPEB 
from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Difference Between Expected and 
     Actual Experience -$                 7$               
Change in Assumptions 45 230

Total 45 237

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources (192)$           

At June 30, 2020, WOU reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PEBB OPEB 
from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Difference Between Expected and 
     Actual Experience -$                 9$             
Change in Assumptions 49                284           

Total 49 293

Net Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of 
     Resources (244)$           

As of June 30, 2021, amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
PEBB OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
2022 (30)$              
2023 (30)                
2024 (30)                
2025 (29)                
2026 (25)                
Thereafter (48)                

(192)$            

Deferred Outflow/ (Inflow) of 
Resources

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual re-
sults are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
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The following key methods and assumptions were used to measure the total OPEB liability:

DISCOUNT RATE 
Unfunded plans must use a discount rate that reflects a 20-year tax-exempt municipal bond yield or index rate. The 
Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index was used to determine the discount rate for the OPEB liability. 
The discount rate in effect for the June 30, 2021, and 2020, reporting dates was 2.16 and 2.21 percent, respectively.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability 
to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 2.16 and 2.21 percent as of June 30, 2021, and 2020, respectively, as well as what 
the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower or one percent 
higher than the current rate:

Discount Rate J une 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

1% Decrease
1.16%/1.21% $2,006 $2,072

Current Discount Rate
2.16%/2.21% 1,871        1,932        

1% Increase
3.16%/3.21% 1,745        1,803        
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15. FUNDS HELD IN TRUST BY OTHERS
Funds held in trust by others, for which WOU is an income beneficiary, are not recorded in the financial records. The 
approximate value of such trust funds at June 30, 2021, and 2020, were $1,944 and $1,554, respectively.

16. RISK FINANCING
WOU is a member of the Public Universities Risk Management and Insurance Trust (Trust). The Trust is a separate legal 
entity which operates for the benefit of the member universities (Member). The Trust is governed by a Board of Trustees 
comprised of a representative of each Member of the Trust. The Trustees administer an insurance program wherein the 
Members share risk by pooling their losses and claims and jointly purchasing insurance and administrative services 
through the Trust. In exchange, Members pay annual assessments and provide the Trustees with information or as-
sistance as necessary for the Trustees to determine annual assessments and to purchase insurance or reinsurance. By 
participating, WOU transfers the following risk to the Trust: 

• Real property loss for university owned building, equipment, automobiles and other types of property
• Tort liability claims brought against the university, its officers, employees or agents
• Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability
• Crime, Fiduciary
• Specialty lines of business including medical practicums, international travel, fine art, camps, clinics and other items.

WOU retains risk for losses under $5, which is the deductible per claim not covered by insurance purchased through the 
Trust.
WOU is charged an assessment to cover the Trust’s cost of servicing claims and payments based on the Risk Allocation 
Model and actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current-year claims. The amount of settlements 
has not exceeded insurance coverage for the past three years.
In addition, WOU purchases various commercial insurance policies to cover the deductible amounts of intercollegiate 
athletics insurance provided through the National Collegiate Athletics Association (NCAA) and to provide coverage for 
special events and student liability.

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Outstanding commitments on partially completed and planned but not initiated construction projects totaled 
approximately $4,187 at June 30, 2021. These commitments will be primarily funded from gifts, grants, and university 
funds.
CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

Total Completed Outstanding
Commitment to Date Commitment

ITC Renovation 9,641$              9,466$              175$                 
OMA Renovation 8,685 8,674 12
Capital Repairs 4,721 1,113 3,608
Project Budgets <$1M 1,115 722 393

24,162$            19,975$            4,187$              

The sensitivity analysis below shows the sensitivity of the university’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability 
calculated using the current healthcare cost trend rates, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare trend rates that are one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than the 
current rates:

Healthcare Rate J une 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

1% Decrease $1,683 $1,740
Current Trend Rate 1,871       1,932       

1% Increase 2,092       2,161       
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WOU is contingently liable in connection with certain other claims and contracts, including those currently in litiga-
tion, arising in the normal course of its activities. Management is of the opinion that the outcome of such matters will 
not have a material effect on the financial statements.
WOU participates in certain federal grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by 
the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor for expenditures 
disallowed under terms of the grant. Management believes that disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on 
the financial statements.
Unemployment compensation claims are administered by the Oregon Employment Division pursuant to ORS Chapter 
657. WOU reimburses the Oregon Employment Division on a quarterly basis for actual benefits paid. Each year resourc-
es are budgeted to pay current charges. The amount of future benefit payments to claimants and the resulting liability to 
WOU cannot be reasonably determined at June 30, 2021.

19. WESTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION
Under policies approved by the Board, individual university foundations may be established to provide assistance in 
fund raising, public outreach and other support for the mission of WOU. The WOU Development Foundation is a 
legally separate, tax-exempt entity with an independent governing board. Although WOU does not control the timing 
or amount of receipts from the foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, that the foundation holds 
and invests are restricted to the activities of the university by the donors. Because these restricted resources held by the 
foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the university, the foundation is considered a component unit of 
WOU and is discretely presented in the financial statements. The financial activity is reported for the years ended June 
30, 2021, and 2020. The foundation is audited annually and received an unmodified audit opinion. 
During the years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, gifts of $1,839 and $1,467, respectively, were transferred from the foun-
dation to WOU. 
Please see the financial statements for the WOU component unit on pages 22 and 24 of this report.
Complete financial statements for the foundation may be obtained by writing to the following: 
• Western Oregon University Foundation, 345 N. Monmouth Ave., Monmouth, OR 97361 
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For Fiscal Years  Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Contractually Required Contribution 3,993$        4,432$        3,028$        3,125$        2,362$        2,337$        1,846$        1,807$        1,687$        
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually 
     Required Contribution 3,993          4,432          3,028          3,125          2,362          2,337          1,846          1,807          1,687          
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Covered Payroll 28,904$      31,552$      28,646$      28,155$      28,527$      27,229$      25,618$      24,368$      23,462$      

Contributions as  a Percentage of Covered Payroll 13.8% 14.0% 10.6% 11.1% 8.3% 8.6% 7.2% 7.4% 7.2%

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
University's  Proportion of the Net Pension Asset/(Liability) 0.23% 0.22% 0.22% 0.26% 0.26% 0.23%

University's  Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/(Liability) (49,387)$     (37,199)$     (33,824)$     (35,461)$     (39,513)$     (13,285)$     

University's  Covered Payroll 31,552$      28,646$      28,155$      28,527$      27,229$      25,618$      

156.5% 129.9% 120.1% 124.3% 145.1% 51.9%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as  a Percentage of the Total Pension Asset/(Liability) 75.8% 80.2% 82.1% 83.1% 80.5% 91.9%

University's  Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/(Liability) as  a Percentage of 
     Covered Payroll 

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS

SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
NET PENSION ASSET/(LIABILITY)*
Public Employees Retirement System 

Public Employees Retirement System 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the 
measurement date, which is a date one year earlier than the fiscal year-end date above. This schedule is presented to 
illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-year trend has been compiled, 
information is presented only for the years for which the require supplementary information is available.
Employer’s covered payroll is equal to the amount reported to PERS in the preceding year.
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For Fiscal Years  Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Actuarially Determined 
     Contributions 1 5$               142$           130$           129$           138$           133$           138$           132$           126$           123$           
Contributions in Relation to the 
     Actuarially Determined 
     Contributions 5                 142             130             129             138             133             138             132             126             123             

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Covered Payroll 28,189$      31,552$      28,641$      28,150$      28,522$      27,224$      25,614$      24,363$      22,902$      22,168$      
Contributions as  a Percentage of 
     Covered Payroll 0.02% 0.45% 0.45% 0.46% 0.48% 0.49% 0.54% 0.54% 0.55% 0.55%

1For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 14.

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
University's  Allocation of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 0.27% 0.27% 0.26% 0.30% 0.29%

University's  Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 4,125$        (526)$          290$           124$           (79)$            

University's  Covered Payroll 31,552$      28,641$      28,150$      28,522$      27,224$      

13.07% -1.84% 1.03% 0.43% 0.29%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as  a Percentage of the Total RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 150.09% 144.38% 123.99% 108.88% 94.15%

University's  Proportionate Share of the Net RHIA OPEB Asset/(Liability) as  a Percentage 
of Covered Payroll 

SCHEDUL E OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIA OPEB ASSET/(L IABIL ITY)*

SCHEDUL E OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIA OPEB EM PL OYER CONTRIBUTION

Employer’s covered payroll is equal to the amount reported to PERS in the preceding year. 
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For Fiscal Years  Ended June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Actuarially Determined 
     Contributions 1 86$             130$           120$           120$           111$           107$           60$             58$             32$             31$             
Contributions in Relation to the 
     Actuarially Determined 
     Contributions 86               130             120             120             111             107             60               58               32               31               

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Covered Payroll 28,189$      31,552$      28,641$      28,150$      28,522$      27,224$      25,614$      24,363$      22,902$      22,168$      
Contributions as  a Percentage of 
     Covered Payroll 0.31% 0.41% 0.42% 0.43% 0.39% 0.39% 0.23% 0.24% 0.14% 0.14%

1For Actuarial Assumptions and Methods, see table in Note 14.

As of the Measurement Date June 30, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
University's  Allocation of the Net RHIPA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 1.15% 0.87% 0.89% 0.96% 0.98%

University's  Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Asset/(Liability) (114)$          (229)$          (314)$          (448)$          (527)$          

University's  Covered Payroll 31,552$      28,641$      28,150$      28,522$      27,224$      

0.36% 0.80% 1.12% 1.57% 1.94%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as  a Percentage of the Total RHIPA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 84.45% 64.86% 49.79% 34.25% 21.87%

SCHEDUL E OF UNIVERSITY PERS RHIPA OPEB EM PL OYER CONTRIBUTION

SCHEDUL E OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PERS RHIPA OPEB ASSET/(L IABIL ITY)*

University's  Proportionate Share of the Net RHIPA OPEB Asset/(Liability) 
     as  a Percentage of Covered Payroll 

Employer’s covered payroll is equal to the amount reported to PERS in the preceding year.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (dollars in thousands)

As of June 30, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
University's Allocation of the Total OPEB Liability 1.24% 1.32% 1.27% 1.34% 1.38%
University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability 1,871$         1,933$         2,047$          1,990$   1,993$   
University's Covered Payroll 38,090$       41,539$       39,703$        38,966$ 38,929$ 

University's Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability as a 
     Percentage of University Covered Payroll 4.91% 4.65% 5.16% 5.11% 5.12%
Total OPEB Liability as a % of Total Covered Payroll 3.72% 3.77% 4.31% 4.42% 4.45%

SCHEDUL E OF UNIVERSITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 
TOTAL  PEBB OPEB L IABIL ITY*

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 for the 
purpose of paying benefits.

Employer’s covered payroll is equal to the amount reported to PERS in the preceding year.
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DEIC, Committee Charter 
 
At its June 9, 2021 regular meeting, the WOU Board of Trustees created a standing 
board committee on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (“DEIC”).  The Board revised its 
Board Statement on Board Committees to reflect the creation of the new committee, 
which may be viewed here.  The WOU Board’s DEIC is the first Board standing 
committee of any of the four-year public universities in Oregon. 
 
Each of the Board’s standing committees require a charter to outline the scope of work 
and topics within the committee’s purview.  There is a standard template for committee 
charters and these docket materials contain a draft DEIC Charter for the committee’s 
consideration. 
 
At its January 13, 2022 inaugural meeting, the DEIC considered a draft committee 
charter to recommend to the Board for approval.  The committee made some suggested 
edits to the draft, which have been incorporated into the draft committee charter 
included in the written docket materials. 
 
During committee discussion, the committee recommended alignment of the 
committee’s name and the Board Statement on Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and 
Accessibility.  When the DEIC was approved by the Board at its June 9, 2021 meeting, 
it did not include the term “accessibility” as included in the Board Statement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Board’s Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Committee (“DEIC”) recommends the 
approval of the committee charter as included in the written docket materials and 
recommends to the Board that the committee’s name change to the Diversity, Equity, 
Inclusion and Accessibility Committee (“DEIAC”).  The committee also recommends that 
staff be authorized to make any minor housekeeping amendments (e.g., updating the 
Board Statement on Board Committees) to other documents to perfect this 
recommendation.   
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Western Oregon University Board of Trustees 
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility Committee (DEIC) Charter 

 
MISSION 
 
The Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility Committee (DEIAC) of the WOU Board of 
Trustees is charged with ensuring the Board and University prioritize the values of diversity, 
equity, inclusion and accessibility throughout the university enterprise and that, as fiduciaries of 
the University, elevate those values as essential to the successful functioning of the Board and 
the University.   
 
AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Board Statement on Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility 
 
The DEIAC is responsible for reviewing, monitoring, and advising progress on the Board’s 
expectations enumerated in the Board Statement on Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and 
Accessibility, including climate, students, employees, curriculum and pedagogy, community 
partnerships, business practices, and facilities and the physical plant.   
 
Diversity Action Plan 
 
The DEIAC, as appropriate, is responsible for reviewing, monitoring, and advising on the 
University’s progress on its Diversity Action Plan (DAP), including but not limited to 
amendments and new versions of the DAP as advised and presented by the President and the 
Executive Director for Diversity, Equity and Inclusion. 
 
University Diversity and Inclusion Advisory Committee (UDIAC) 
 
The DEIAC, as appropriate and in concert with the President, is responsible for receiving 
periodic updates from the University Diversity and Inclusion Advisory Committee (UDIAC) 
regarding its activities and its role in the development of the University’s Diversity Action Plan.  
The UDIAC is a presidential advisory committee.   
 
University Cultural Competence Advisory Committee (UCCAC) 
 
The DEIAC, as appropriate and in concert with the President, is responsible for receiving 
periodic updates from the University Cultural Competence Advisory Committee (UCCAC) as 
required by HB 2864 (2017) and its activities and its role in the development of the University’s 
HB 2864 standards, including but not limited to the biennial board report required by HB 2864.  
The UCCAC is a presidential advisory committee.   
 
Dashboard 
 
The DEIAC, with the assistance of campus units, such as Institutional Research, will formulate, 
monitor and receive periodic updates on a Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Accessibility 
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dashboard to track progress on DEIA goals and measures, including but not limited the 
development of any institution goals and any assistance the Board’s Executive, Governance and 
Trusteeship Committee (EGTC) requires in its duty to conduct the performance evaluation of the 
university president.   
 
Training 
 
The DEIAC, as appropriate, is responsible for proposing and recommending relevant diversity, 
equity, inclusion and accessibility training for the Board and its trustees. 
 
Policies 
 
The DEIAC is responsible for any and all recommendations to the WOU Board of Trustees 
regarding Board Statements including, but not limited to any topic or initiative related to 
diversity, equity, inclusion and accessibility.   
 
Workplan 
 
The DEIAC will adopt an annual workplan, in concert with the Board’s strategic planning 
retreats, to describe the work, consistent with the AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
section of this Charter, it plans to accomplish for that year.   
 
ORGANIZATION 
 
Membership; Structure; Quorum 
 
The DEIAC, consistent with the Board Statement on Committees, will consist of five members.  
The Board chair appoints members of the committee, including the committee chair.  A quorum 
of the DEIAC will be three committee members. 
 
Meetings 
 
The DEIAC will meet at least four times each year.  DEIAC meetings will be conducted in 
substantial compliance with the Board Statement on the Conduct of Public Meetings.  Because 
committees may meet more frequently than the full Board of Trustees, the chair or staff are 
encouraged to convene meetings by telephone or videoconference for the convenience of the 
committee members.   
 
Agenda, Minutes, and Reports 
 
The chair, in collaboration with the staff designee, is responsible for establishing the agendas for 
meetings.  An agenda, together with relevant materials, will be sent to committee members at 
least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting.  Minutes for all meetings shall be drafted by the 
staff designee, reviewed by the Secretary to the Board, reviewed by the committee chair, and 
approved by committee members at the following meeting. 
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Staff Designee 

The Executive Director of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion and/or his/her/their designee will be 
staff to the DEIAC. 

Review of Charter 

This charter shall be reviewed and reassessed by the DEIAC at least annually, and any proposed 
changes shall be submitted to the board for approval. 

Document History 

•DEIC Committee Meeting, January 13, 2022
•Full Board, February 16, 2022
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Board of Trustees Meeting, February 16, 2022 
President’s Update 
 
COVID: 
The omicron surge has been relentless in recent weeks but seems to be subsiding 
now, though we have many employees and students currently in quarantine, including 
some of our child development center students and staff.  Most cases have been mild.  
The Governor has announced the indoor mask requirement will be removed by March 
31, 2022. We will work with the COVID Safety Team to assess how this will impact 
WOU. 
 
Vaccination Clinics at Gentle House: 
Please get out the word that OHA will be hosting a Vaccination/Booster as well as Flu 
Shot Clinic at the Gentle House from 10 a.m. – 2 p.m. this Friday, February 11, 2022. 
Other dates and times that we have requested are: 

• 2/18/22 from 1-5p.m. or 2-6 p.m. 
• 2/25/22 from 10a.m. - 2 p.m. 
• 3/4/22 from 1-5p.m. or 2-6 p.m. 

 
Executive Director of Diversity Equity and Inclusion Search Update: 
Randi Lydum, search chair reports a strong pool of candidates.  Seven semi-finalists 
were interviewed.  Four finalists will be brought to campus soon for campus wide 
interviews with various constituencies. This position will become a member of the 
president’s cabinet and will be the advisor to the Freedom Center. 
 
Executive Director of Human Resources Search Update: 
Tina Fuchs, search chair reports that the committee has identified the semi-finalists 
that will be interviewed in the next week or so.  The goal again is to invite finalists to 
campus in February/March for interviews/presentations and we hope to have 
someone selected and in place in April/May 2022. 
 
Enrollment and Other Strategic Initiatives: 
Our enrollment management team continues to meet every Thursday morning for 2 
hours to go through the various initiatives and to ensure that all handoffs in the 
process go smoothly with a focus on increased yield and student success.  In addition 
to the initiatives listed below we discuss the implications from placing registration 
holds for advising, bill payment, need for transcripts, etc.; tuition and fee pricing 
policies, the value add from the Destination Western program, monitoring retention, 
persistence and graduation rates, flowcharting the admission and financial aid 
processes and removing unneeded complexity and steps, changing financial aid 
award methodology from an early pre-award in November/December that typically 
understated awards and a second adjusted award in March/April, to a one time award 
in March/April will full amounts detailed and with the benefit of RNL’s financial aid 
packaging wisdom and strategy discussed below.  
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Our strategy is using multiple simultaneous initiatives and efforts will produce positive 
results. Expected enrollment increase Fall 2022 – 10% over Fall 2021 and it could be 
higher. 
 
Undergraduate Admissions: 
Currently, applications for undergraduate admissions are up 14% over last year at this 
same time and admits are up 16.5% over last year same time.  The data are even 
more impressive for Hispanic students as applications are up 43% over last year and 
admits are up 38% over last year at this same time.   
 
Graduate Admissions: 
Currently applications for graduate programs are up 35% over the same time last year 
and admits are up 214%, though the N is small, thus somewhat distorting the % 
increase over last year. 
 

 

Western Oregon University
Applications and Admissions Report
Week of February 4, 2022

Fall 2022 Fall 2021 %
Applications Resident Non-Res. Int'l Total Total Chng.
Freshmen

African American 31              45              -             76              87              -12.6%
American Indian 22              4                 -             26              23              13.0%
Asian/Pacific Isl. 76              109            1                 186            158            17.7%
Hispanic 743            140            3                 886            620            42.9%
Unknown 119            109            15              243            268            -9.3%
White 969            310            -             1,279         1,113         14.9%

Total Freshmen 1,960         717            19              2,696         2,269         18.8%

Transfers 179            73              4                 256            331            -22.7%

Graduates 61              24              -             85              63              34.9%

Total Applicants 2,200         814            23              3,037         2,663         14.0%
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Key Observations from high school counselor focus group at the Cesar E. 
Chavez Leadership Conference. 
 
Number of attendees: 13 
 
Representatives from Salem Keizer School District, Newport High School, Wilsonville 
High School, La Salle Catholic, Woodburn High School, and Beaverton High School.   
Attendee roles included: Vice Principal, Counselor, Graduation Specialist, Teacher, 
Migrant Specialist, Community Liaison, and Community School Outreach Coordinator. 
 
Key Observations and proposed actions 

1.  Affordability is a critical and growing barrier to college for all students, but 
especially low-income and Latinx students.  Affordability is more than actual 
costs, it also includes knowledge and perceptions.  Reading a university billing 
statement was compared to trying to understand an insurance bill. 

• Focus on being transparent.  There was comment about WOU changing 
scholarship offers to students (this appeared to be the stacking issue 
where multiple awards added together were capped at a certain 
threshold, and awards were sometimes lowered to comport with the cap 
after they arrived). 

• Re-design the bill to make it easy for students and parents to read and 
understand. 

• Create more student-friendly financial aid information.  Convene a 
student feedback group including high school students to discuss WOU 
webpage, emails and print materials. 

• Improve the timing of financial aid packages and communications plan. 

2. College recruitment was compared to used car sales.  College admission 
counselors are quick to tout the strengths of their schools, but often do not 
disclose limits.  Place the students first! 

Fall 2022 Fall 2021 %
Admitted Resident Non-Res. Int'l Total Total Chng.
Freshmen

African American 22              35              -             57              61              -6.6%
American Indian 16              4                 -             20              17              17.6%
Asian/Pacific Isl. 65              82              -             147            121            21.5%
Hispanic 534            84              3                 621            450            38.0%
Unknown 85              78              14              177            205            -13.7%
White 714            239            -             953            852            11.9%

Total Freshmen 1,436         522            17              1,975         1,706         15.8%

Transfers 135            58              4                 197            157            25.5%

Graduates 12              3                 -             15              7                 114.3%

Total Admitted 1,583         583            21              2,187         1,870         17.0%

Page 116 of 125



• Train admission counselors to be truthful advocates for higher education 
as well as WOU. 

• Use current WOU students.  They are viewed as being more 
credible.  Take them to local high schools. 

• The military has been making big strides in increasing student 
interest.  The military is at the schools all the time including during lunch 

• Visit key feeder schools every 2-3 weeks.  Connect with different offices 
including counseling, career readiness, migrant education, Community 
Outreach, College and Career.  

• Daily announcements about which schools are visiting are not heard in 
the classrooms.  WOU needs to use the CRM to text and email in 
advance and even the day of visits. 

3. Living on campus is too expensive. 
• Provide an explanation of why the costs are higher—RA’s, student 

programs, limits to the number of students per room… 
• Show the value of living on campus…higher retention and graduation 

rates, NSSE data? 
 

4. WOU does not mention the dual enrollment program with Chemeketa as an 
option 

• Make sure that admission counselors are familiar with the partnership 
activities with Chemeketa. 

• Determine if WOU and Chemeketa mention dual enrollment in print and 
digital media. 

 
5. Admission process is confusing and needs to be simplified 

• The citizenship question stops many DACA students; look to add “other” 
or “non-applicable” or use language similar to what is used by OSAC. 

• Admissions should send out a monthly or quarterly newsletter to high 
school counselors, and others who work with students.  Can be a one-
page double sided document.  UO and Chemeketa were cited as doing 
this.  Topics include updates, academic programs, campus services, 
student and faculty profiles… 

• Strengthen and expand the WOU Project and Latino Advisory 
Board.  These programs are very well received by Salem Keizer schools. 

• WOU application form should better reflect WOU’s strong commitment to 
DEI. 

 
Things that WOU does well: 

1. WOU is a good partner for high schools and school districts. 
2. WOU admissions criteria allow for students to be admitted in multiple ways and 

supports student access. 
3. WOU has a community feel and places student needs first (referenced the 

Latino Advisory Board). 
4. WOU provides personal attention and involves family (referenced the Latino 

Advisory Board). 
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5. Students learn about WOU through word-of-mouth. 
6. WOU approaches people rather than waiting for students to approach WOU.   
7. WOU does a good job of emphasizing that students go to college rather than 

that they go to WOU only (see WOU Project and Latino Advisory Board) 

Other items: 
• Benefits Navigator position should link with the Migrant Specialists, Community 

School Outreach Coordinators (CSOC), Graduation Specialists, and 
Community Liaisons in Polk, Marion, and Yamhill Counties with a focus on 
Central, Dallas and Salem.  This connection could “support “warm hand-off’s” 
between the high schools and WOU leading to another enrollment pipeline. 

• Offer early admissions to juniors (will need to be a conditional or pre-
admit).  This is to take the stress off the senior year and to lock students into 
WOU.  

• Offer high school juniors support in writing their college essays for admissions 
and scholarships.  The Writing Center could send tutors to help local high 
school students.   

• Have family nights at the local high schools where WOU focuses on helping 
families understand the college and financial aid process. 

• Use National Student Clearinghouse to identify students admitted for Fall ’20 
and Fall ’21 who did not enroll in any college.  Conduct an admissions 
campaign to connect these students to WOU.   

EAB Partnership: 
EAB is currently running analyses and assisting with marketing to both non-traditional 
undergraduate students and graduate students. 
 
EAB ran its undergraduate program portfolio health check and concluded the 
following: 
 
EAB’s market scoring analyses identified the following programs as best poised for 
growth among Western Oregon University’s existing undergraduate portfolio. These 
programs demonstrate high and/or growing labor market demand along with some 
combination of high or growing completions and few regional competitors: 

• BA in Spanish 
• BS/BA/BAS in Computer Science 
• BS/BAS in Business Analytics (known as Data Analytics at WOU) 
• BS/BAS in Psychology 
• BS in Cybercrime Investigation and Enforcement 
• BS in Criminal Justice (Juvenile Justice) 
• BA in Public Policy & Administration 

 
Further, the following programs demonstrate strong labor market demand, but scored 
lower in competitive opportunity (i.e., high number of competitors and/or decreasing 
reported completions). These programs indicate potential for growth based on labor 
market demand, but the competitive landscape may be a limiting factor: 

• BS in Computer Science & Mathematics 
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• BS/BAS in Information Systems 
• BA/BAS in Gerontology: Aging and Older Adulthood 
• BS in Business 
• BS in Public Health 
• BA in Communication Studies 

 
All programs received scores relative to each other. Thus, a program described with 
low regional labor market demand does not necessarily represent low opportunity for 
growth in absolute terms, but rather lower opportunity for growth when compared to 
other programs in the undergraduate portfolio. 
 
EAB also conducted a Portfolio Health Check to evaluate the institution’s existing 
graduate portfolio and assess growth opportunities. EAB’s market scoring analyses 
identified the following programs as best poised for growth among Western Oregon 
University’s existing graduate portfolio. These programs demonstrate high and/or 
growing labor market demand along with some combination of high or growing 
completions and few regional competitors:  

• M.S. Rehabilitation Counseling  
• M.S.Ed in Educational Technology (formerly known as Information Technology 

at WOU) 
 
Further, the following programs demonstrate strong labor market demand, but scored 
lower in competitive opportunity (i.e., high number of competitors and/or decreasing 
reported completions). These programs indicate potential for growth based on labor 
market demand, but the competitive landscape may be a limiting factor:  

• M.A. Organizational Leadership  
• M.S.Ed in Education  
• M.A. in Justice Studies  

 
All programs received scores relative to each other. Thus, a program described with 
low regional labor demand does not necessarily represent low opportunity for growth 
in absolute terms, but rather lower opportunity for growth when compared to other 
programs in the graduate portfolio. 
 
Investing in new faculty/staff: (searches are in process) 

• 2.0 FTE in Education 
• New Faculty in Business 
• New faculty member in Sociology 
• New faculty in Computer Science 
• Professional advisor in Business 

 
WOU Athletics: 
Men’s soccer – Update from Stan Rodrigues:  I am proud to say that I have close to 
40 committed or National Letter of Intent signed players. I am bringing in a very 
diverse group of student athletes with a common goal of being a competitive team on 
the field as well as in the classroom.  
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I am still in talks with other potential student athletes from North Salem and various 
high school players from the I5 corridor and beyond. I am excited to have players from 
the Islands of Hawaii, Sierra Leone, Wyoming, Arizona, California, Washington and 
Nevada. I am still exploring Texas since we have the ability to recruit there. I will not 
rest until I feel like we have built a quality team and culture.  We have 6 students on 
campus attending now and I am proud that they chose to start and get ready for the 
spring as I hope to have nearly 10 more begin then.  
 
Our Social Media has been having many engagements and my social media director, 
Angela, is constantly adding content to bring more attention to the school and our 
program as well as local news and media outlets to ensure our program is well known 
and highlighted. Having a new program added to our campus is a great time to bring 
positive energy and highlights, having a turf field would also add to that positivity! 
 
We are also expanding the rosters slightly in many other sports and hope to add 
another ~30 student Athletes from this action. And national averages suggest that for 
every athlete recruited to a university 1-2 (average of 1.5) friends follow. 
 
Partnership Opportunities: 

• SWEETER – seeking $5.0M from the February 2022 Legislature for State 
workforce development in partnership with SEIU and AFSCME.  This is a 
collaboration between the State, the State’s labor unions and Western Oregon 
University to work on retention and retraining programs for State workers.  The 
goal will be to allow State workers opportunities for job advancement within the 
state and training programs that increase skill, morale in their current and future 
jobs.  An allocation of $5.0 million for start up costs, creation of program and 
curriculum, and enrollment of workers into the program.  If funded this would 
allow WOU to offer upwards of 3,000-4,000 State workers classes free of 
charge with the State in essence prepaying the tuition.  

• SWEETER Plus - support the training and licensure of home care workers – 2nd 
phase of the program if funded and another 30,000 potential clients. 

• Amazon – Career Choice Program – due to our partnership with Chemeketa 
the Amazon Corporate office is asking us if we would be willing to partner on 
their Career Choice program (this occurred because of Chemeketa’s work with 
Amazon). This is their internal employee benefits program that allows their 
associates to take college credit classes, paid for by Amazon. We need to 
decide if we are willing to comply/partner with them in order to set up the 
connection. If so, next steps would be to set up a virtual meeting with them and 
go through the details of how to make it happen. Here are several talking points 
from conversations with Amazon:  

• Full and part time employees are eligible  
• At the Salem facility, there are currently just over 1,000 employees (keep in 

mind, this agreement would also cover Woodburn when it is up and running)  
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• Career Choice just made a change and allows employees to pick ANY 
certificate or degree. (it used to be limited based on Amazon's choice/list)  

• full-time employees are eligible for up to $5250/year, part-time employees are 
eligible for half that  

• Amazon sets up these agreements with the closest community colleges and 
universities within a 30 mile radius. However, in their database an employee 
can look locally, or statewide, and we would come up in both searches.  

• They require us to connect with them and set up processes they have 
developed on two things. • They have a voucher for student payment, where 
the payment comes directly from Amazon. They would want us to accept their 
vouchers and payment process.  

• There is a data sharing requirement. The voucher already has some kind of 
FERPA release for the student and they have worked that out with several 
other institutions. They want two pieces of information: if a student completed 
successfully (they do not care about specific grades, just if they passed), and 
notification of when they complete a certificate or degree.  
  

We are also offering multiple sessions of Racial Understanding training classes for 
various municipalities and other political subdivisions. 
 
Bilingual/Diversity Teacher Scholars and Teacher Education:  We have created 
60 new diversity scholarships in hopes of recruiting more people of color into the 
teaching ranks; including a cohort of eight community college transfers funded by 
Unitus Community Credit Union. Dean Girod has been in communication with most 
school districts around the State to solicit their assistance in recruiting diverse 
students who want to become teachers.                                 

 
International Student Recruitment—Shorelight: 
We have signed a contract with Shorelight to help us recruit international students to 
WOU.  There is no up-front cost.  However, we must pay them 40% of the first-year 
non-resident tuition from international students they recruit to WOU and 10% 
thereafter if the student persists at the university.  They estimate they could find WOU 
10-15 students for the Fall 2022 class. 

  
Ruffalo Noel Levitt (RNL) Financial Aid Leveraging: 
Successes: 

• Net tuition revenue drop was more modest (though never a good thing) than 
the significant drop in headcount and drop in gross tuition revenue. 

• Enrolling families have a stronger ability to pay, family incomes of FAFSA filers 
who enrolled up 8% to $119K. 

Challenges: 
• ~38% students of color in first year class in 2021 compared to ~41% in 2020. 
• Drop in Pell recipient percentages in first year class – 44% in 2020 down to 

42% in 2021 (37% down to 36% in RNL national data – publics). 
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• Too many high ability students with no merit aid offers, or too low an offer to be 
effective. 

• Awarding challenge – offering effective award levels for as many students as 
possible. 

• Competitor challenge – other Oregon regional publics are more aggressive with 
merit scholarships. 

 
RNL COVID-19 Research: Key Takeaways 
 

 Fall 2020 College Bound Senior Survey (n=531)  
• Over two-thirds indicated that COVID-19 has, or may, influence 

their college plans.  
• As a result of the pandemic, students would like to see more 

financial assistance, communication, technology resources and 
online course options.  

High School Parent Survey (n=3,827)  
• Half of the parents attended virtual college informational events.  
• Three-quarters indicated financial aid and scholarships will be very 

important in their child’s final enrollment decision.  

High School Counselor Survey (n=2,689)  
• 85% need information they can easily share via email with students.  
• 90% are accessing information via the college website. Make sure your site is 

up to date!  

Enrollment Management Professional Survey (n=397)  
• To communicate with applicants, institutions report using video and 

webchat “a lot” more. 
• From the College Bound Senior survey, students report wanting to 

receive more texts; however, only 19% of institutions report using 
text a lot more.  

Student Success Professional Survey (n=55)  
More than 85% indicated they are concerned about Fall 2020 retention, and 
there is low confidence in their ability to predict retention.  
 
Recommendations 
 
Regardless of other actions:  

• Award “grid” merit scholarships without requiring an additional application, first 
year and transfers.  

• Eliminate the “grid” merit scholarship deadline, award throughout the admission 
and enrollment cycle, first year and transfers.  
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Three Proposals to Consider for First-year Students:  
WOU would promise to all admitted in-state students who are Pell-eligible (to include 
students unable to file a FAFSA) would receive enough gift aid from Federal, state, 
and WOU funds to cover the costs of tuition and fees. This could include a cutoff date, 
or a GPA requirement of 3.00 or some other cut off as a way of reducing expenditure 
of the program. Also, extended a level of expected aid to all students just above Pell 
eligibility who have EFC’s below $10,000.  

Increase Merits – offer higher merit aid to more students through 
a combination of increasing the award level, expanding the GPA range 
of eligible students, and eliminating the cutoff dates. This proposal is 
for both in state and out of state students.  

Combine both – Apply the new merits and then make the promise of tuition 
and fees in gift aid to all eligible students. In many cases, the higher merit 
offers are all that is needed to fund the Promise, so it is not double the 
additional expenditure.  

 
Willamette Promise: 
The relationship between Western Oregon University (WOU) and the Willamette 
Education Service District (WESD) as it pertains to the Willamette Promise (WP) 
program is primed to yield future WOU students. Although there are currently some 
technological barriers (as of Jan. 2022), there still are many opportunities to recruit 
high school students who are earning or have already earned credit at WOU.  
This initial report identifies assets, opportunities and strategies that serve as the 
foundation for a strong communication plan that recruits WP students to become 
WOU students after high school graduation. 

• Hundreds of high school students who participate in WP, ranging from high 
school freshmen to high school seniors 

• Contact information for students (though largely this is via their high school 
email, see WESD action items below) 

• Database of students that can be parsed to target specific audience for 
communications 

• Contact information for some parents 
• Communications and information technology staff at both WOU and WESD 

who are eager to maximize this relationship 
• Scholarship (Weston) to offer WP students to entice them to attend WOU. 

Recently has been expanded to continue two years of enrollment instead of 
one year. 

In discussion with WOU and WESD, it was decided that high school students in the 
first month of their senior year are the best audience on which to focus our immediate 
efforts. The summer is less ideal because students aren’t checking their email (high 
school email or personal email) during the summertime.  
 
A September-October messaging campaign catches students before they’ve 
applied to college and while they are preparing to file the FAFSA, which opens Oct. 1. 
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We can also use it to entice students to come to WOU for fall preview day. Or, 
perhaps eventually, a WP student-specific event, maybe in partnership with WESD. 
For the initial effort, the message will be around “You are already a WOU student! 
Complete your WOU application today to continue earning your bachelor’s 
degree.” Then info about the Joe Weston Scholarship, reminder to file for FAFSA, 
maybe something about the Dream.US scholarship if appropriate, and testimonials 
from current WOU students who chose WOU after earning WP credits and graduating 
high school. 
 
WESD Action items: 

• Change registration form to require a personal email in addition to the school 
email 

• Change registration form to include a box allowing WOU to add their contact 
info to Slate (or make it opt-out? Still checking data-sharing agreement) 

• Determine whether the website can be tweaked to NOT encourage students to 
move their credits away from WOU 

WOU action items: 
• Change automated message confirming registration to include information 

about becoming a WOU student or similar message 
• Change registration form to include a box opting in to receiving messages from 

WOU, something like “I want to know how the college credits I earn through 
Willamette Promise can get me closer to a degree from Western Oregon 
University” 

• Change the website to NOT encourage students to move their credits away 
from WOU  

Immediate communications opportunities: 
• Email current seniors (who have earned or are currently earning college credit 

through WP) to remind them they are already WOU students, and there is still 
time to apply in time to be eligible for scholarships. 

• Email current juniors with the message of “Not sure college is for you? You’re 
already a WOU student. Let’s keep this going!” 

• Text message students for whom we have phone numbers with “Turn your 
college credits into scholarship funds. Apply to WOU today in order to be 
eligible for 200+ scholarships” 

• DONE – Provide BTS and DTS fliers to high school teachers teaching WP 
Spanish classes 

• Send a “congratulations” email to students after they earn credit (already in the 
works between Amy Clark, Bev West and Admissions, I believe) 

• Plan and create communications campaign for next Sept.-Oct. 

2022 Legislative Session: 
As you probably know, the 2022 Legislative session started on Feb. 1 and runs for no 
more than 35 days. This will be Senate President Peter Courtney’s last session in the 
Legislature and Rep. Dan Rayfield’s (WOU alum) first session as speaker of the 
house.  I wanted you to know the extent of what we are requesting and would 

Page 124 of 125



appreciate any assistance you could provide should you happen to know or talk with 
Legislators. 
 

1. $16.5M steampipe replacement/utility tunnel system 
 

2. ~$275K for SEIU raises for "pandemic pay" that the SEIU agreed to help us get 
funded during the last round of bargaining (this is WOU’s portion, but all seven 
public universities are asking for their share). 

 
3. Up to $5.0M for a state workforce development program in conjunction with 

SEIU, AFSCME and WOU.  This would fund tuition for numerous State 
employees to up skill or complete their degrees. 

 
4. $4.2M (amount updated) for construction inflationary increases on the Student 

Success Center. (Again, this is WOU’s portion, the total ask for all seven public 
universities is in excess of $80M). 

 
5. $1.2M for continued funding for the Strong Start (Destination Western) 

Program.  (WOU’s portion, but all seven public universities are asking for 
continued funding). 

 
6. $4.1M for the athletic turf field - this would allow us to replace the grass in front 

of the stadium with field turf, expand the field to accommodate soccer, 
resurface the track and add new LED lighting. 

 
Total Ask:  $31.3M 
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